Statement of Accounts 2006/07

The following pages contain the accounts of Salford City Council for the financial year ended 31 March 2007
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If you need help in understanding this document please contact the Accountancy Team at Salford City Council, telephone number 0161 793 2668, email council.finances@salford.gov.uk. This document can also be provided in large print, audio/electronic and Braille formats.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Salford City Council
Opinion on the financial statements

To be added following the conclusion of the audit in September.

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

To be added following the conclusion of the audit in September.

Foreword by the Head of Finance
Introduction

Welcome to the Council’s accounts for 2006/07, covering the period from 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2007.  Thank you for your interest in the Council’s affairs, we hope you find the accounts interesting and informative.

These accounts are extremely detailed and technical, so hopefully this foreword will provide an easily understandable guide to them and to the most significant financial matters, as well as setting out the Council’s current position and the outlook for the forthcoming year.  If however you would prefer to start with a shorter, simpler version of the accounts, rather than the full version contained in this book, you can obtain a copy of the Council’s Summary Statement of Accounts 2006/07 leaflet from your local Salford library or at www.salford.gov.uk/budget-statement 

Description of the various statements of account

The next few paragraphs give a brief explanation of the financial statements that follow, explaining their purpose and the relationship between them.
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
This statement affirms the respective responsibilities of the Council and the Head of Finance for the production and content of the accounts.

Statement of Accounting Policies
This explains the basis for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of transactions reported in the accounts.  As more than one basis might be acceptable, the accounts can be properly appreciated only if the chosen policies are explained.

The Core Financial Statements
· The Income & Expenditure Account is fundamental to the understanding of the Council's activities, in that it reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which the authority is responsible, and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from general government grants and income from local taxpayers.  It brings together expenditure and income relating to all of the local authority's functions, in three distinct sections, each divided by a sub-total.  Both income and expenditure are measured using UK generally-accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP), essentially the same accounting conventions that a large unlisted company would use in preparing its audited annual financial statements.

· The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance reports amounts in addition to the Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit that are required by statute and non-statutory proper practices to be charged or credited to the General Fund, thus determining local taxation levels.

· The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL) brings together gains and losses from the Council’s Balance Sheet together with the surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account to show the total movement in the Council's net worth for the year.

· The Balance Sheet is fundamental to the understanding of the Council's financial position at the year-end.  It shows its balances and reserves and its long-term indebtedness, the fixed and net current assets employed in its operations, together with summarised information on the fixed assets held. 

· The Cash Flow Statement ensures that the significant elements of receipts and payments of cash are highlighted in a way that facilitates an assessment of cash-flow performance and provides information that assists in assessing the Council’s liquidity, solvency and financial adaptability.
Notes to the Core Financial Statements

These comprise mandatory disclosures in accordance with proper practice and additional material items of interest, with the purpose of providing the reader with sufficient information to have a good understanding of the Council's activities.  

Housing Revenue Account 

This reflects the statutory requirement for authorities to maintain separate records for the income and expenditure on council housing.  The account shows the major elements of housing revenue expenditure: maintenance, administration and capital financing costs and how these are met by rents, subsidies and other income.

Collection Fund 

This reflects the statutory requirement for a billing authority to maintain a separate fund showing its transactions relating to non-domestic rates and the council tax, and illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to preceptors and the General Fund.
Trading Accounts 

These separately record the income and expenditure of the Council’s Direct Service Organisations (DSOs), which have historically operated on a more commercial basis than mainstream Council services.

Group Accounts

For a variety of legal, regulatory and other reasons, the Council may choose or be required to conduct its activities through separate undertakings more or less under its ultimate control, such as public/private partnerships and similar arrangements.  The standard financial statements of the Council as a single entity only account for the Council’s interest in other organisations to the extent of its historical investment, and not current performance and balances.  For this reason they do not present a full picture of its economic activities or financial position.  The group financial statements therefore reflect the extended service delivery and economy under the control of the Council as parent reporting authority.  The Group Accounts contain Core Financial Statements of a similar type to the Council’s single-entity accounts, consolidated with figures for the Council’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The Statement on Internal Control
This statement reflects the statutory requirement to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and include a statement with the statement of accounts.  Its origin is in national concern about corporate governance generally, raised by high profile cases such as Maxwell Communications and BCCI. 
General and Financial Statistics

This section contains some simple, general information about the Council that may be of interest to the reader.
Glossary of Financial Terms

This “jargon-buster” is intended to assist the reader in understanding the specialised accounting terms and possibly unfamiliar public sector concepts that are contained in this document.

How we performed in 2006/2007

Improving our services

We are committed to improving the services we provide.  For the second year running the Audit Commission acknowledged that we achieved good performance by awarding us three star status overall (out of a maximum four) and saying that our services are on the whole improving adequately.  Their report reflected that many of our services are among the best in local government; social care for adults scored the maximum score possible and we gained a high score for the way we manage our finances and provide value for money.  

We have achieved a great deal in the last twelve months and are looking forward to the future. We know where we are going, we know what we want to achieve and we know what we still need to do.  We are ambitious and will continue to work hard to do more and strive to become a four star authority in the future.

Value for money 

We have delivered a sound financial framework for the city through a budget that reflects our priorities. We have worked hard to deal with increasing pressures, the changing demands of government and the continuing transformation of our city, while still maintaining high quality services for local people.  We have successfully managed a medium-term policy of keeping council tax increases among the lowest in Greater Manchester, and indeed the country as a whole.  

Regeneration 

We worked hard to help bring new investment, new residents and new jobs to the city, as well as improving life in the city for existing residents.  During the year, the city has seen government approval for a state of the art stadium for Salford City Reds, and confirmation of £118 million government funding to help transform secondary schools.  The BBC has now confirmed it will move five key departments to Salford, which will form the core of mediacity:uk at Salford Quays, which is expected to bring £1.5 billion investment in to the regional economy and provide employment opportunities for 15,500 people.  Massive private sector interest in the city has brought in more than half a billion pounds of new investment in Langworthy, Charlestown and Lower Kersal and Higher and Lower Broughton.  Massive development around the Chapel Street area and the Quays continues.

Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) 2007

As part of the modernisation agenda framework, the Council continues to measure service delivery and financial performance against national performance indicators and locally-determined targets, and consequently is taking great strides in improving its comprehensive performance assessment (CPA).  The Audit Commission acknowledged the improvements made when three-star status was awarded under the new and harder CPA assessment method in 2006.

The Commission summarised, “The Council is making good progress in most priority areas, but this is not matched by solid improvement in all services. Environmental and cultural services show scope for improvement in some areas. However, performance in housing services has improved. By working effectively with its partners the Council is making an effective contribution to wider community outcomes. Good improvement is being made in regenerating the local economy, and the number of 16-18 year olds in training, education or employment is increasing. Independence for older people is well promoted and is improving. Improvements in the levels of educational attainment and school attendance are being sustained albeit from a low base, and the gap between best and worst performing schools is narrowing. Performance in benefits administration declined this year, but prospects for regaining the previous level of achievement are promising. User satisfaction with council services generally is mixed. The Council has improved the way it works, is well managed, and has good capacity to deliver its future improvement plans.”

Performance Indicators

The targets we set ourselves are based on our seven pledges to residents that ultimately focus on delivering our mission, “to achieve the best possible quality of life for the people of Salford.”

61% of our performance indicators were improving as at the third quarter of 2006/07 when compared with the same period in 2005/06, although 33% were deteriorating. We have action plans in place to improve our performance where we are not achieving the target.

Financial summary 2006/07

The Council set a budget of £189.2m for 2006/07 (£181.9m in 2005/06, after adjusting for changes in the grant regime now excluding dedicated schools grant expenditure from the Council’s net budget).  This allowed an increase in expenditure of 4% on the comparable budget for the previous year and a resultant council tax increase of 3.2%.  Excluding the precepting authority increases, the level of increase in tax for Salford's services was just 3%.

The Revenue Support Grant settlement, the most influential determinant of the Council's budget, allowed for a 2.9% increase in formula grant, after adjusting for changes relating to dedicated schools grant.  This was towards the lower end for metropolitan districts.

The budget included efficiency savings totalling £2.9m across all services (£2.5m in 2005/06) to allow resources to be put into maintaining service priorities, and a planned drawdown of £2.5m from General Fund reserves.

The Council's Budget Scrutiny Committee was updated on a monthly basis on spend against budget, savings monitoring, risk assessment and prudential indicator information.  This regular monitoring allowed the early identification of spending pressures and suitable corrective response.  The following table shows how the original budget was revised over the year and how we achieved the forecast made at budget-setting time through a combination of robust monitoring, implementation of savings plans, debt rescheduling savings, increased interest on investments and additional dividend income.

Council Revenue Expenditure

Actual expenditure on Council services compared to the original and revised estimate for 2006/07 is shown below.

	
	Revised Estimate
	Actual
	Variation from the Revised Estimate

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s



	Net cost of services
	194,737 
	191,648 
	(3,089)

	
	
	
	

	Net operating expenditure items
	45,962 
	45,097 
	(865)

	Net operating expenditure
	240,699 
	236,745 
	(3,954)

	
	
	
	

	Income from Government grants, local taxpayers and NDR 
	(189,190)
	(189,190)
	- 

	PFI and LABGI scheme grants
	(3,003)
	(3,003)
	- 

	Deficit for the year
	48,506 
	44,552 
	(3,954)

	
	
	
	

	Other movements on the reconciling items for the General Fund Balance
	(44,847)
	(46,214)
	(1,367)

	
	
	
	

	Call on general reserves
	3,659 
	(1,662)
	(5,321)

	
	
	
	

	General Fund Balance
	
	
	

	   LMS Schools
	(712)
	(712)
	-  

	   General Fund Reserve
	(2,947)
	2,374 
	5,321 

	
	(3,659)
	1,662 
	5,321 

	
	
	
	


The original estimate for 2006/07 was £189.190m and included a contribution from the General Fund reserve of £2.529m.  Favourable variations in the year have resulted in an actual contribution to the reserve of £2.374m as indicated in the table above.  This gives a total favourable variation from the original estimate of £4.903m.  Details of the major variations are shown below.

	
	Services
	Reserves
	Budget

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s



	Original Budget 2006/07
	191,719 
	(2,529)
	189,190 

	
	
	
	

	
Increased cost associated with the placement of Salford children in care establishments based outside Salford
	860 
	
	

	
Increased costs of home to school transport
	450 
	
	

	
Increased costs associated with nursing and residential care
	1,070 
	
	

	
Capital financing debt rescheduling savings resulting in reduced cost of borrowing and increased interest on investments
	(1,636)
	
	

	
Increased costs of the disposal of trade waste
	222 
	
	

	
Levies and charges additional costs of one off initiatives
	100 
	
	

	
Efficiency savings including management of staffing vacancies and use of excess provisions and reserves
	(868)
	
	

	
Cost of settlements of equal pay claims
	1,919 
	
	

	
Use of excess provisions relating to insurance and repayment of grant 
	(1,500)
	
	

	
Other minor variations
	(199)
	
	

	
	418 
	(418)
	- 

	
	
	
	

	Revised estimate 2006/07
	192,137 
	(2,947)
	189,190 

	
	
	
	

	Net cost of services
	
	
	

	
Reduction in actual cost of equal pay claims settled in 2006/07
	(1,343)
	
	

	
Excess in Insurance Fund provision credited to services
	(1,488)
	
	

	
Savings from the moratorium on non-essential expenditure
	(258)
	
	

	
	(3,089)
	3,089 
	- 

	
	
	
	

	Net operating expenditure
	
	
	

	
Dividend income from Chapel Wharf
	(861)
	
	

	
Other minor variations
	(4)
	
	

	
	(865)
	865 
	-

	
	
	
	

	Other movements on the reconciling items for the General Fund Balance
	
	
	

	
Contribution from excess in Insurance Fund reserve
	(1,223)
	
	

	
Contribution to Investment Fund
	1,000 
	
	

	
Improved trading performance on DSOs
	(777)
	
	

	
Other minor variances
	(367)
	
	

	
	(1,367)
	1,367 
	- 

	
	
	
	

	Outturn 2006/07
	186,816 
	2,374 
	189,190 


The diagrams overleaf show, in broad terms, how revenue expenditure was funded and what it was spent on.  They include income and expenditure in respect of the Housing Revenue Account.

Summary of Gross Revenue Expenditure 2006/2007
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Pension Liability

In accordance with proper practice, the Council has adopted Financial Reporting Standard FRS17 “Retirement Benefits”, which recognises the full estimated cost of pension liabilities.  This FRS has a substantial impact on the net cost of services and DSO surpluses although, as the adjustments are reversed out in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, not on the level of local taxation.  

More importantly, there is a significant impact on the balance sheet, which shows a pension liability of £147.8m (£192.6m 2005/06), being an estimate of the value of the Council’s commitments under the Local Government Pension Scheme, were all those commitments to be called now.

While the balance sheet pensions liability appears alarming, there is less cause for concern than might be expected.  Statutory arrangements for funding the deficit through increasing contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by an independent actuary, mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy.

Accounting Policies

There have been no changes to policies previously adopted.  However, the presentation of the accounts appears substantially different from last year owing to the latest Statement of Recommended Practice having adopted the standard commercial format for the main statements of account.  Comparator figures for 2005/06 have been recast in the new format and so will be set out differently to the way they originally appeared in last year’s statement.

In particular, the Consolidated Revenue Account has this year been replaced by an Income and Expenditure Account produced in line with more standard commercial practice.  Readers of last year’s accounts will observe that the restated Income and Expenditure Account for 2005/06 shows a loss of £35.299m, compared to the £2m surplus shown last year in the Consolidated Revenue Account for 2005/06.  The reason for this is that certain items were required to be included in the Consolidated Revenue Account in order to avoid having an impact on council tax, but they are not to be included in the Income and Expenditure Account.  The new Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance reconciles the difference, and makes sure that the new accounting treatment has the same impact on tax levels as the previous treatment.

Borrowing
It is a statutory duty under Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 for the Council to determine its affordable borrowing limits.  In determining its limits the Council must have regard to the Prudential Code and ensure that total capital investment remains within affordable limits, in particular that the impact upon its future Council Tax/rent levels is acceptable.  The Prudential Code requires the Council to set a number of Prudential Indicators, for up to three years.  During 2006/07 all borrowing activities were contained within the limits set.

The level of long-term borrowing as at 31 March 2007 was £468.6m (31 March 2006 £506.7m).

The authority’s underlying need to borrow is measured by its capital financing requirement, or CFR, which increased by £19.1m in 2006/07.  The estimated increase for 2007/08 is £12.9m.  The CFR may differ from actual borrowing because, among other things, of timing differences.  The CFR is analysed in the tangible fixed asset note to the core accounting statements.
Capital financing

The preceding paragraphs in the main refer to the Council’s revenue budget, monies spent on day-to-day activities and running of Council services.  In addition, the Council manages a capital programme, spending monies on the creation and acquisition of assets that will give benefit to the area beyond the current year of account.   

Capital expenditure is financed from:

· “supported” borrowing, where government grants cover the debt charges;

· unsupported (or “prudential”) borrowing where the Council uses its own revenue resources to cover the debt charges;

· capital grants

· usable capital receipts arising from the sale of some of the Council’s other assets;

· such amounts as the Council decides to fund direct from the revenue budget.

In 2006/07 the City Council spent £123.2m capital projects (£102.6m in 2005/06) and the categories and methods of financing are shown in the fixed asset note to the balance sheet.

Major projects carried out during the year were




£m

Private Sector Housing
North Irwell
3.8

Higher Broughton
4.8

Lower Broughton
3.1

Claremont/Weaste
1.9

Seedley/Langworthy
9.4

Public Sector Housing
Decent Homes
11.1
Education
DFC


2.3

Surestart

3.4

Primary Review
3.4

New Deal Condition/Modernisation
2.1

Investment in the Highways
4.4

Others
Adelphi Street/Meadow Road
3.0

Salford Business Park
6.1

Salford Methodist Church
3.1

LIFT


2.8

Worsley Pool
3.1

Sports Village
0.5

Innovation Forum
7.4

Homes to Trust
4.4

Equal Pay

3.4

The Council's planned capital expenditure for 2007/08 is £114.8m of which £52.1m relates to major contractually committed schemes as at 31 March 2007, referred to in the notes to the core statements.

Full details of the capital programme are produced in a separate booklet (available from the Corporate Accountancy Team, Customer and Support Services Directorate, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton M27 5AW, telephone 0161 793 2685).

Exceptional items

There has been one exceptional matter that has arisen during the year and that has been the need to negotiate a settlement of equal pay claims.  The expected total cost of such claims is £6.8m, of which an estimated to £0.650m will be met by schools and £6.150m by the Council.  A direction from the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) allows £3.431m of this amount to be capitalised in 2006/07 leaving the remaining £2.719m to be funded from reserves (subject to an application for a further capitalisation in 2007/08).  The payment of the claims is fully reflected in the accounts, which include a provision for items not yet settled. 

Outlook 
There is a major change planned in delivery of housing services from 2007/08.  In May 2005, Salford City Council announced the results of its Housing Stock Options Review, which involved 18 months of consultation with tenants across the city.  Based on the results of this consultation, the Council has developed an investment strategy that outlines its vision for the future of council housing in Salford.  This proposal includes the development of a local housing company, an ALMO with a focus on regeneration, a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme and a central service provider.  

In July 2006 the Council submitted bids to the DCLG for inclusion on a transfer programme and the establishment of a regeneration ALMO.  The Council has launched its’ new ALMO Salix Homes in July 2007 with them taking over the management responsibilities for these properties from New Prospect Housing Ltd (NPHL).  Also in July 2007 the Council launched the brand of the Common Services Provider – Housing Connections Partnerships.  In August 2007 the Council received a positive mandate from it’s tenants within West Salford for transfer to a Local Housing Company and work is being undertaken to register this with the Housing Corporation and launch the Company in 2008.  The management responsibility for these properties remains with NPHL until the launch of the new Company.  

As part of the transfer work NPHL will have to be wound up during 2008.  Concurrently the Council is progressing the work on the PFI initiative and how this can be co-aligned with work on the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme. 
Overall, the Council continues to focus on its seven pledges in order to deliver the mission statement "to achieve the best possible quality of life for the people of Salford".  These pledges will continue to be achieved by improving our services, regeneration, communicating our ambitions and ensuring value for money.

Finally, looking ahead, the budget for 2007/08 has been set at £198.229m, which is a 4.8% increase on the 2006/07 comparable budget of £189.2m.  After allowing for changes to the Council Tax base (related to the number of properties in the bandings) and increases related to the fire and police services, this has resulted in a 3% overall increase in Council Tax for Salford's services, which was again one of the lowest increases in the country.

Further Information
Accounts

Further information about the accounts of Salford City Council is available on our website at www.salford.gov.uk/budget-statement or from the Corporate Accountancy Team, Customer & Support Services Directorate, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton M27 5AW, telephone 0161 793 3245 or email council.finances@salford.gov.uk.  In addition, interested members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the accounts before the audit commences.  The availability of the accounts for inspection is advertised in the local press.

Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP)

For a wider understanding of the Council’s operations and performance, the statement of accounts should be read in conjunction with the Council’s BVPP.  Recent years’ BVPPs can be found on our website at www.salford.gov.uk/bv-reports.  

Audit Commission 

As well as monitoring the management of the Council’s finance, the Audit Commission have a wider inspection role.  Their Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) of the Council can be found in your library or on our website at www.salford.gov.uk/cpa.  Other inspection reports are available on the Commission’s website, www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

Certification

I certify that the statement of accounts that follows presents fairly the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2007 and its income and expenditure for the year to 31 March 2007.
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John Spink CPFA

Head of Finance

25 June 2007

Approval of the statement of accounts
In accordance with Regulation 10 section 3(b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, I certify that the statement of accounts was approved by the Accounts Committee at its meeting of 29 June 2007 and submitted for audit.
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Councillor James B. Dawson

Chair of Accounts Committee

29 June 2007
Approval of the statement of accounts following audit

I certify that the statement of accounts that follows, incorporating changes arising from the audit during July to September 2007, was approved by the Accounts Committee at its meeting of 24 September 2007.

Councillor James B. Dawson

Chair of Accounts Committee

24 September 2007
Statement of Responsibilities for

the Statement of Accounts
The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required:

· to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  For the Council that officer is the Head of Finance;

· to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and to safeguard its assets;

· to approve the statement of accounts.

The Head of Finance's Responsibilities

The Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s statement of accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code of Practice”).

In preparing this statement of accounts, the Head of Finance has:

· selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

· made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

· complied with the Code of Practice;

The Head of Finance has also:

· kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

· taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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John Spink CPFA

Head of Finance

25 June 2007

Statement of Accounting Policies
1.
General Principles


The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by CIPFA/LASAAC, a statement of Recommended Practice 2006 (the SORP), and also with other guidance notes issued by CIPFA.


The accounting convention adopted in these accounts is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of land, buildings and plant.


The revenue and capital accounts are maintained on an accruals basis. 


Consistent accounting policies are applied both within the year and between years. Where an accounting policy changes, the reason and effect is disclosed.


The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.


The accounts reflect the reality or substance of the transactions and activities underlying them rather than their formal legal character.


The concept of materiality has been utilised in the process of preparing the accounts, such that insignificant items are excluded and fluctuations under an acceptable level of tolerance are permitted, provided that in aggregate they would not affect the interpretation of the accounts by an informed reader.


Where estimating techniques are required to enable the accounting practices adopted to be applied, then the techniques which have been used are appropriate and consistently applied. Where the effect of a change to an estimation technique is material, a description of the change and, if practicable, the effect on the results for the current period is disclosed.      

2.
Accruals of Income and Expenditure


Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.  In particular:

· Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date that the Council provides the relevant goods or services

· Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed.  Where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as stocks on the balance sheet.

· Works are charged as expenditure when they are completed, before which they are carried as works in progress on the balance sheet.

· Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for in the year to which it relates, on a basis that reflects the overall effect of the loan or investment.

· Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

· Income and expenditure are credited and debited to the relevant service revenue account, unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure.  The exception to this treatment is that periodic payments, such as quarterly fuel bills or half yearly rents, are accounted for in the year in which they are paid.  This policy, applied consistently each year, does not have a material effect on the Income and Expenditure Account.

3.
Provisions


Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain.  For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.


Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the likely settlement .  When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the balance sheet (usually within creditors) where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefits will not now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue account.


Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the relevant service revenue account if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

4.
Reserves


The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service revenue account in that year to score against the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account.  The reserve is then appropriated back to the General Fund Balance statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.


Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed assets and retirement benefits that do not represent usable resources for the Council; these reserves are explained in the relevant policies below.

5.
Government Grants and Contributions (Revenue)

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as income at the date that the conditions of entitlement to the grant/contribution, are satisfied, there is reasonable assurance that the monies will be received, and the expenditure for which the grant is given has been incurred.  Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to which they relate.  Grants to cover general expenditure, for example Revenue Support Grant, are credited to the foot of the Income and Expenditure Account after Net Operating Expenditure.

6.
Retirement Benefits


Employees of the Council are members of two separate pension schemes:


The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers' Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education and Skills (DfES).


The Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS), administered by Tameside MBC as the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF)


Both schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees working for the Council.


The arrangements for the Teacher's scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot be directly attributed to the Council.  The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contributions scheme: no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the balance sheet and the Education service revenue account is charged with the employer's contributions payable to Teachers'  Pensions in the year.  There are no distinctive balances in the balance sheet.


The Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme.


The liabilities of GMPF attributable to the Council are included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and estimations of projected earnings for current employees.


Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 5.4% based on the indicative rate of return on the iboxx Sterling Corporates Index, AA over 14 years (an index of high quality corporate bonds)


The assets of GMPF attributable to the Council are included in the balance sheet at their fair value:

· quoted securities, at mid-market value;

· unquoted securities, at professional estimate;

· unitised securities, at the average of the bid and offer rates;

· property, at market value


The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

· current service cost; the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned this year, allocated in the Income and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked;

· past service cost; the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non-Distributed Costs;

· interest cost; the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account;

· expected return on assets, the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-term return, credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account;

· gains/losses on settlements and curtailments, the result of actions to relieve the Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees, debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non-Distributed Costs;

· actuarial gains and losses; changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have update their assumptions, debited to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses;

· contributions paid to the GMPF, cash paid as employer's contributions to the pension fund


The pension regulations since 1 April 2006 allow retiring members to exchange part of their pension for additional tax-free cash.  The effect of this on the fund is to reduce the overall pension liability.  It has been assumed that 25% of the members eligible to do so make this election and take additional tax-free cash up to HMRC limits.  This assumption is based on investigations across the country.


Statutory provisions limit the Council in raising council tax to cover only the amounts payable to the pension fund in the year.  In the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end.


Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award.  This includes the discretionary added years element of the Teachers' scheme, which element is therefore accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

7.
VAT

Value Added Tax is included in the accounts only to the extent that it is irrecoverable and therefore charged to service expenditure or capital expenditure as appropriate.

8.
Overheads and Support Services


The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those services that benefit from the supply or service, in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2006.  The total absorption costing principle is used; the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

· Corporate and Democratic Core, costs relating to the Council's status as a multi-functional, democratic organisation;

· Non-Distributed Costs, the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and depreciation charged on assets not used in the delivery of a service.


These two cost categories are accounted for as separate headings in the Income and Expenditure Account, as part of Net Cost of Services.

9.
Intangible Fixed Assets

Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council, e.g. software licences, is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the Council for more than one financial year.  The balance is amortised to the relevant service revenue account over the economic life of the investment to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits.

10.
Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the provision of services or for administrative purposes on a continuing basis.


Recognition 


Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is capitalised on an accrual basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Council and the services that it provides for more than one financial year.  Expenditure that secures but does not extend the previously-assessed standards of performance of asset, e.g. repairs and maintenance, is charged to revenue as it is incurred.


Measurement 


Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use.  Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases;

· investment properties and assets surplus to requirements, at lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value;

· dwellings, other land and buildings, vehicle, plant and equipment, at lower of net current replacement costs or net realisable value in existing use: vehicles are not normally subject to revaluation and are valued at net historical cost as a proxy;

· infrastructure assets, at depreciated historical costs;

· community assets are assets which are not used for service provision and, in many cases, may not be sold or otherwise disposed of.  Additionally there may be restrictive covenants regarding their use.  Examples include parks and museum exhibits.  They have been included in the balance sheet at a nominal value of £1 each.


Net current replacement cost is assessed as:

· for non-specialised operational properties, existing use value

· for specialised operational properties, depreciated replacement cost

· for investment properties and surplus assets, market value.


Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued where there have been material changes in the value and as a minimum every five years, except council houses which are revalued every year.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Fixed Asset Restatement Account to recognise unrealised gains.


Impairment 


The values of each category of assets, and of material individual assets that are not being depreciated, are reviewed at the end of each financial year for evidence of reductions in value.  When impairment is identified as part of this review or as a result of a valuation exercise, this is accounted for as follows:

· where attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits, the loss is charged to the relevant service revenue account;

· otherwise, it is written off against the Fixed Asset Restatement Account.


Disposals

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying value of the asset in the balance sheet is written off to the Fixed Asset Restatement Account.  Receipts from disposals are credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and any gain or loss is credited or debited to the Income and Expenditure Account.  The Council revalues its assets on disposal, so any gain or loss will be the exception, arising for example when an asset is sold at lower than its valuation for regeneration purposes.


Amounts in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  A proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government.  The balance of receipts is credited to the Usable Capital Receipts reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council's underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financial Requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.


The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Financing Account from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.


Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all assets with a determinable finite life, except for investment properties, by allocating the value of the asset in the balance sheet over the periods expected to benefit from their use.


Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

· dwellings and other buildings: straight-line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer, typically:


Council Dwellings
30 years (per MRA)


Car Parks
45 years


Education - School Buildings
40 years


Other Buildings
10-30 years

· vehicles, plant and equipment: straight-line allocation over 5 years

· infrastructure: straight-line allocation over 10 years

· newly acquired assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition

· no depreciation is charged on assets under construction


For Council dwellings the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) which was introduced under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounts (England) Regulations) 2000 has been used as the amount of depreciation charged.  The MRA reflects the estimated average annual cost of maintaining the condition of the housing stock over a 30 year period, based on the mix of dwelling types.


Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful lives, these are depreciated separately.


Grants and contributions


Where grants and contributions are received that are identifiable to fixed assets with a finite useful life, the amounts are credited to the Government Grants Deferred Account.  The balance is written down to revenue to match and offset depreciation charges made for the related assets in the relevant service revenue account, in line with the depreciation policy applied to them.

11.
Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

· depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service, net of any related grants released from the Government Grants deferred account to match the rate of depreciation;

· impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on tangible fixed assets used by the service;

· amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service


Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual provision (MRP) to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement, equal to at least 4% of the underlying amount measured by the adjusted Capital Financial Requirement, excluding amounts attributable to HRA activity.  Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by MRP in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Financial Account for the difference between the two.


Prudential Borrowing

The Council uses its powers under the Prudential Code for Capital Finance to borrow money above the amount recognised in government general grant calculations or funded by capital receipts.  Where it does so, an additional voluntary revenue provision for capital financing is charged to the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance with a view to topping up MRP so that the assets purchased are paid for within their estimated useful life.


Direct revenue financing

Where the Council voluntarily charges capital expenditure in-year to revenue, the amount is debited to the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

12.
Deferred Charges

Deferred charges represent expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of tangible assets.  Deferred charges incurred during the year are usually written off as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year although, where appropriate, they are written off over a longer period consistent with the consumption of economic benefits.  Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the deferred charges from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Financing Account reverses out the amounts charged in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is no impact on the level of council tax.

13.
Leases

Finance Leases

Leases are finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the leased property transfer to the Council.  Rentals payable are apportioned between:

· a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property (recognised as a liability in the balance sheet at the start of the lease, matched with a tangible fixed asset)  the liability is written down as the rent becomes payable;

· a finance charge (debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account as the rent becomes payable).


Fixed assets recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies applied generally to Tangible Fixed Assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life.


Operating Leases

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases.  Rentals payable are charged to the relevant service revenue account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are charged when they become payable.

14.
Repurchase of Borrowing

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio with substantially the same overall effect when viewed as a whole, gains and losses are recognised on the balance sheet and written down to revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the replacement loans.

15.
Investments

Investments are carried at cost.  If the value of an investment falls below its cost, the investment is written down to market value and a provision for the unrealised loss made in the Income and Expenditure Account if this is unlikely to be a temporary fall.

16.
Stocks and Work in Progress

Stocks are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at the year end and recorded in the balance sheet at cost plus any profit reasonably attributable to the works.

17.
Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and is therefore required to prepare group accounts.  In the single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are recorded as investments, i.e. at cost, less any provision for losses.

18.
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

PFI contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available the fixed assets needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor.  Payments made by the Council under a contract are generally charged to revenue to reflect the value of services received in each financial year.


Prepayments 


A prepayment for services receivable under the contract arises when assets are transferred to the control of the PFI contractor, usually at the start of the scheme.  The difference between the value of the asset at the date of transfer and any residual value that might accrue to the authority at the end of the contract is treated as a contribution made to the contractor and is accounted for as a prepayment.  The prepayment is written down (charged) to the respective revenue account over the life of the contract to show the full value of services received in each year.  However, as the charge is a notional one, it is reversed out in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to remove any impact on council tax or rents.


Dowry payments, made at the start of the contract, which result in lower unitary payments over the life of the contract are accounted for by setting up the contribution (dowry) as a prepayment for services receivable and writing the balance down to revenue over the life of the contract as services are received to reflect their real cost.


Reversionary Interests

The Council has passed control of certain land and buildings over to the PFI contractor, but this property will return to the Council at the end of the scheme (reversionary interests).  An assessment has been made of the net present value that these assets will have at the end of the scheme (unenhanced) and a reversionary interest asset has been created in the Council's balance sheet.


As the asset is stated initially at net present value, over the life of the scheme the discount will need to be unwound by earmarking (decreasing) part of the unitary payment to ensure the reversionary interest is recorded (decreasing) part of the unitary payment to ensure that reversionary interest is recorded at current prices when the interests revert to the Council.


Residual Interests

Where assets created or enhanced under the PFI scheme are to pass to the Council at the end of the scheme at a cost less than fair value (including nil), an amount equal to the difference between the fair value and the payment to be made at the end of the contract is built up as a long-term debtor over the contract life by reducing the amount of the unitary payment charged to revenue.


PFI credits

Government Grants received for PFI schemes, in excess of current levels of expenditure, are carried forward as an earmarked reserve to fund future contract expenditure.

19.
Trading Accounts

The Council produces separate trading accounts for its Direct Service Operations (DSOs) and reports their overall trading surplus or deficit in its Income & Expenditure Account below the Net Cost of Services.  Historically, the intention of this policy has been to reflect the full nature of the Council's activity by disclosing separately that part which was exposed to competition.  However, as the competition rules have not applied since 2000/01, and the Council's DSOs are not exposed to commercial risk in the same way as before 2000, the value of this separate disclosure is becoming increasingly questionable.  Therefore, the policy is under review for next year's accounts (2007/08), with a view to incorporating the DSO surplus or deficit into the Net Cost of Services, with appropriate disclosure notes as necessary.

20.
Group Accounts


The group accounts include the Council's share of the operating results, assets and liabilities of each group entity's accounts, rather than just the historical cost of the investment.  Subsidiaries  are accounted for on an acquisition basis and incorporated line-by-line, writing out inter-group transactions.  Associates and joint ventures are incorporated by accounting for the Council's share of their operating results in the Group Income and Expenditure Account and of their assets in the Group Balance Sheet.


Furthermore, it is necessary that group accounts are internally consistent, i.e. that each group entity's accounts are adjusted so that all are presented adopting the same policies.  The policies adopted are those that apply to the Council, as set out in this section.


In these accounts interim financial statements have been used for any entities with a financial year that differs from the Council's of 1 April to 31 March.  These interim statements have been produced using the entities' annual financial statements and relevant management accounting information.

Income and Expenditure Account

for the Year Ended 31 March 2007

	2005/06

Net Expenditure

£000s
	
	2006/07

Gross Expenditure

£000s
	2006/07

Gross Income

£000s
	2006/07

Net Expenditure

£000s
	Notes

	
	
	
	
	
	

	2,666 
	Central services to the public
	28,995 
	(25,665) 
	3,330 
	1

	317 
	Court services
	339 
	(27) 
	312 
	 

	41,649 
	Cultural, environmental & planning services
	88,969 
	(40,790) 
	48,179 
	

	130,512 
	Education services
	190,489 
	(169,059) 
	21,430 
	50 

	30,284 
	Highways, roads and transport services
	38,188 
	(7,103) 
	31,085 
	

	(3,446)
	Housing services
	166,274 
	(174,768) 
	(8,494)
	2

	77,091 
	Social services
	143,468 
	(60,895) 
	82,573 
	3

	2,902 
	Non-distributed costs
	958 
	0  
	958 
	4

	5,757 
	Corporate & democratic core 
	6,556 
	(686) 
	5,870 
	

	0 
	Exceptional costs of equal pay settlements
	6,405 
	0  
	6,405 
	5

	287,732
	Net Cost of Services
	670,641 
	(478,993) 
	191,648 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	0 
	(Gain) or loss on the disposal of fixed assets
	
	
	(491)
	

	(171)
	Trading account (surpluses) and deficits
	
	
	(502)
	6

	33,552 
	Interest payable and similar charges
	
	
	33,175 
	

	14,729 
	Contribution of housing capital receipts to Government Pool
	
	
	16,923 
	7

	(1,529)
	Dividend income
	
	
	(1,250)
	34 

	(714)
	Investment (gains)/losses
	
	
	396 
	8

	(3,442)
	Interest & investment income
	
	
	(3,054)
	

	2,300 
	Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets
	
	
	(100)
	9

	332,457
	Net operating expenditure
	
	
	236,745
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(73,318)
	Demand on the Collection Fund
	
	
	(77,343)
	

	
	General government grants
	
	
	
	

	(149,230)
	    Revenue Support Grant
	
	
	(18,097)
	

	(72,157)
	    Non-domestic rates redistribution
	
	
	(93,750)
	

	(1,871)
	    PFI grant support
	
	
	(1,796)
	10

	(995)
	    LABGI scheme grant
	
	
	(1,207)
	11

	
	
	
	
	
	

	34,886
	Net (surplus)/deficit for the year
	
	
	44,552
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John Spink CPFA

Head of Finance

25 June 2007

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council's actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months.  However, the level of council tax must be determined on a different accounting basis, with adjustments made for items required by statute, or otherwise, to be included or excluded when determining council tax levels.  The main differences are:

· capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than as the fixed assets are consumed;

· the payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government, although a loss in the Income and Expenditure Account, is met from the usable capital receipts balance so does not affect council tax;

· retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners, rather than as future benefits are earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the Council's spending against the council tax that it raised for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure.

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance.

	2005/06

£000s
	
	2006/07

Net Expenditure

£000s
	Note

	
	
	
	

	34,886 
	Surplus or deficit for the year on the income and Expenditure Account
	44,552 
	

	
	
	
	

	(36,121)
	Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper practices to be credited to the General Fund Balance for the year
	(46,214)
	

	(1,235)
	Increase in General Fund Balance for the year
	(1,662)
	

	
	
	
	

	(10,550)
	General Fund Balance brought forward
	(11,785)
	

	
	
	
	

	(11,785)
	General Fund Balance carried forward
	(13,447)
	

	
	
	
	

	(1,625)
	Amount of General Fund Balance held by schools under local management schemes
	(913)
	

	
	
	
	

	(10,160)
	Amount of General Fund Balance generally available for new expenditure
	(12,534)
	

	(11,785)
	
	(13,447)
	

	
	
	
	


Note of reconciling items for the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

	2005/06

£000s
	
	2006/07

£000s
	2006/07

Net Expenditure

£000s
	Note

	
	Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(100)
	Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
	(116)
	
	21

	
	
	
	
	

	(20,183)
	Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
	(18,531)
	
	22

	
	
	
	
	

	(1,833)
	Excess of depreciation charged to HRA services over the Major Repairs Allowance element of Housing Subsidy
	(1,254)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	4,993 
	Government Grants Deferred amortisation
	5,453
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	1,301 
	Government Grants on non-depreciating assets
	0
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(216)
	Contribution (from)/to capital reserves
	(78)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(11,627)
	Write downs of deferred charges to be financed from capital resources
	(11,583)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	0 
	Net gain or (loss) on sale of fixed assets
	491 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	714 
	Investment gains or (losses)
	(335)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	0
	Reversal of Equal pay provision
	(2,398)
	
	5

	
	
	
	
	

	(6,300)
	Net change made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17
	(6,600)
	
	9

	(33,251)
	
	
	(34,951)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be included when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	5,257 
	Minimum revenue provision for capital financing
	5,970 
	
	44

	
	
	
	
	

	1,103 
	Capital expenditure charged in year to the General Fund Balance
	97 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(14,729)
	Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts to meet payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool
	(16,923)
	
	45

	
	
	
	
	

	(8,369)
	
	
	(10,856)
	

	
	Transfer to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to be taken into account when determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(180)
	Housing Revenue Account balance
	(522)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	1,099 
	Voluntary revenue provision for capital financing
	1,438 
	
	44

	
	
	
	
	

	4,580 
	Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves
	(1,323)
	
	48

	5,499 
	
	
	(407)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(36,121)
	Net additional amount required to be credited to the General Fund balance for the year
	
	(46,214)
	

	
	
	
	
	


Statement of Total Recognised Gains & Losses

	2005/06

£000s
	
	2006/07

£000s
	Notes

	34,886 
	(Surplus)/deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
	44,552 
	

	(91,037)
	(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets
	(135,467)
	22

	16,300 
	Actuarial(gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities
	(51,400)
	47

	0 
	Other gains (attributable movement on the Collection Fund balance)
	(885)
	51

	(39,851)
	Total recognised (gains) for the year
	(143,200)
	


Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2007
	31 March 2006
	31 March 2006
	
	31 March 2007
	31 March 2007
	Notes

	£000s
	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	
	Fixed assets
	
	
	

	401 
	
	    Intangible Assets
	301 
	
	21

	
	
	    Operational Assets
	
	
	

	774,235 
	
	
  Council dwellings
	881,104 
	
	

	255,881 
	
	
  Other land and buildings
	248,617 
	
	

	9,079 
	
	
  Vehicle, plant, furniture and equipment
	8,957 
	
	

	60,431 
	
	
Infrastructure assets
	61,220 
	
	

	1 
	
	
Community assets
	1 
	
	

	
	
	
Non-operational assets
	
	
	

	38,889 
	
	
  Investment properties
	46,840 
	
	

	45,120 
	
	
  Surplus assets held for disposal
	70,036 
	
	

	4,836 
	
	
  Assets under construction
	20,998 
	
	

	
	1,188,873
	

Total fixed assets
	
	1,338,074
	22

	
	
	Other long-term assets
	
	
	

	
	20,565
	
Long-term investments
	
	20,397 
	24

	
	33,591
	
Deferred premiums on early repayment of debt
	
	30,136 
	25

	
	1,617
	
Stock discount
	
	1,499 
	25

	
	2,580
	
Deferred consideration
	
	6,723 
	26

	
	13,426
	
Long-term debtors
	
	15,169 
	27

	
	1,260,652
	

Total long-term assets
	
	1,411,998
	

	
	
	Current assets
	
	
	

	984 
	
	
Stocks, WIP and stores
	607 
	
	28

	61,841 
	
	
Debtors and prepayments
	75,462 
	
	29

	49,150 
	
	
Short-term investments
	37,738 
	
	24

	11,364 
	
	
Cash
	10,405 
	
	

	
	123,339
	
	
	124,212 
	

	
	1,383,991
	

Total assets
	
	1,536,210 
	

	
	
	Current liabilities
	
	
	

	(954)
	
	
Borrowing - amounts falling due within one year
	(51,103)
	
	30

	(72,692)
	
	
Creditors & receipts in advance
	(75,534)
	
	31

	(2,154)
	
	
Provisions
	(6,333)
	
	32

	(9,140)
	
	
Cash Overdrawn
	(10,720)
	
	

	
	(84,940)
	
	
	(143,690)
	

	
	1,299,051
	

Total assets less current liabilities
	
	1,392,520 
	

	
	
	Long-term liabilities
	
	
	

	(506,677)
	
	
Long-term borrowing 
	(468,634)
	
	30b

	(15,555)
	
	
Deferred liabilities
	(16,131)
	
	33

	(1,363)
	
	
Debt rescheduling discounts
	(1,951)
	
	25

	(1,471)
	
	
Lowry receipt in advance
	(1,418)
	
	35

	(10,910)
	
	
Insurance Fund
	(11,866)
	
	36

	(75,699)
	
	
Government grants deferred
	(106,741)
	
	37

	(192,600)
	
	
Pensions liability
	(147,800)
	
	47

	
	(804,275)
	
	
	(764,541)
	

	
	494,776 
	

Total assets less liabilities
	
	637,979 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Financed by:
	
	
	

	
	516,608 
	
Fixed asset restatement account
	
	614,343 
	43

	
	124,304 
	
Capital financing account
	
	131,710 
	44

	
	10,884 
	
Usable capital receipts reserve
	
	5,722 
	45

	
	2,598 
	
Deferred capital receipts
	
	2,717 
	46

	
	3,792 
	
Housing revenue account
	
	3,270 
	48

	
	(192,600)
	
Pensions reserve
	
	(147,800)
	47

	
	17,405 
	
Other reserves
	
	14,569 
	48-51

	
	11,785 
	
General Fund reserve
	
	13,448 
	48

	
	494,776 
	

Total net worth
	
	637,979 
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25 June 2007

The Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2007
	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	Revenue activities
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows
	
	
	

	234,819 
	Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
	238,658 
	
	

	252,428 
	Other operating cash payments
	278,995 
	
	

	26,579 
	Housing Benefit paid out
	28,676 
	
	

	70,928 
	National non-domestic rate payments to national pool
	63,645 
	
	

	9,341 
	Precepts paid 
	10,008 
	
	

	14,429 
	Payments to the Capital Receipts Pool
	17,899 
	
	

	608,524 
	
	
	637,881 
	

	
	Cash inflows
	
	
	

	(28,379)
	Rents (after rebates)
	(25,769)
	
	

	(60,159)
	Council Tax Receipts
	(67,248)
	
	

	(72,157)
	National non-domestic rate receipts from national pool
	(93,677)
	
	

	(65,836)
	Non-domestic rate receipts
	(72,604)
	
	

	(149,174)
	Revenue Support Grant
	(18,102)
	
	

	- 
	Dedicated Schools Grants
	(122,025)
	
	

	(91,256)
	DWP grants for benefits
	(99,090)
	
	

	(97,394)
	Other government grants
	(102,993)
	
	54

	(49,243)
	Cash received for goods and services
	(47,174)
	
	

	(37,084)
	Other operating cash receipts
	(37,809)
	
	55

	(650,682)
	
	
	(686,491)
	

	(42,158)
	Net cash flow from revenue activities
	
	(48,610)
	52

	
	Dividends from joint ventures and associates
	
	
	

	
	Dividend income
	
	(861)
	

	
	Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows
	
	
	

	30,372 
	Interest paid
	30,436 
	
	

	
	Cash inflows
	
	
	

	(3,651)
	Interest received
	(2,347)
	
	

	(1,529)
	Dividend income from other investments
	(1,250)
	
	

	25,192 
	
	
	26,839 
	

	(16,966)
	
	
	(22,632)
	

	
	Capital Activities
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows 
	
	
	

	62,530 
	Purchase of fixed assets
	81,374 
	
	

	-
	Purchase of investments
	805 
	
	

	39,891 
	Other capital cash payments
	36,089 
	
	

	102,421 
	
	
	118,268 
	

	
	Cash inflows
	
	
	

	(22,595)
	Sale of fixed assets
	(26,753)
	
	

	(38,124)
	Capital grants received
	(41,694)
	
	

	(3,732)
	Other capital cash receipts
	(1,594)
	
	

	(715)
	Sale of investments
	- 
	
	

	(65,166)
	
	
	(70,041)
	

	20,289
	Net cash inflow/outflow before financing
	
	25,595
	53

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of Liquid Resources
	
	
	

	(1,150)
	Net increase/(reduction) in short-term deposits

	
	(11,412)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financing
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows
	
	
	

	5,874 
	Repayments of amounts borrowed
	112,157 
	
	

	
	Cash inflows
	
	
	

	(22,547)
	New long-term loans
	(6,996)
	
	

	(957)
	New short-term loans
	(116,805)
	
	

	(17,630)
	
	
	(11,644)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	1,509 
	Net (Increase)/Reduction in cash
	
	2,539 
	


Notes to the Core Financial Statements 
Changes to the Statements

The CIPFA SORP 2006 has required a number of new statements to be completed including an Income and Expenditure Account, a Statement of Movement of General Fund Balances and a Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses. Several figures in the 2005/06 Consolidated Revenue Account and the Group Income & Expenditure Account have been restated in the new 2006/07 Statement of Accounts as a consequence of these changes.

These adjustments are detailed below:  

· capital financing charges (notional interest) for the use of fixed assets are no longer made to service revenue accounts and trading accounts

· credits for government grants deferred are now posted to service revenue accounts and trading accounts rather than credited as a corporate income item

· gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets are now recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account

· the Asset Management Revenue Account is removed and the associated entries where appropriate are disclosed separately within service revenue accounts, net operating expenditure and the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance (SMGFB)

· School reserves are now included within the General Fund balances and included in the SMGFB rather than as separate entry in the consolidated revenue account  

Overall the above adjustments have a nil effect on the amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxation but they have the following impact on the comparative figures for 2005/06 compared with those published in the 2005/06 Statement of Accounts:

	
	Consolidated Revenue Account 2005/06 Statement of Accounts
	Removal of capital financing charges
	Reallocation of government grants deferred credits
	School balances
	Transfers

to/from

SMGFB
	2005/06 comparatives in Income & Expenditure Account

	
	£000
	£000
	£000
	£000
	£000
	£000

	Impact on Net Cost of Services line
	333,770
	(38,585)
	(4,992)
	0
	(2,461)
	287,732

	Impact on Net Operating Expenditure line
	334,346
	0 
	0 
	1,025
	(2,914)
	332,457

	Net (Surplus)/deficit for the year 
	(2,260)
	0 
	0 
	1,025
	36,121
	34,886

	Statement of Movement on GF Balance
	0
	0 
	0 
	0
	(36,121)
	(36,121)


The changes have also affected the Net Worth of the Council and last years comparatives have been adjusted as follows:-

	
	£000

	Net Worth 31 March 2006 in 2005/06 accounts
	525,956 

	Government Grants Deferred – reclassified as a long term liability
	(75,699)

	Debt rescheduling discounts – reclassified as a long term liability 
	(1,363)

	Debt rescheduling premiums and stock discount – reclassified as a other long term assets
	35,208 

	Deferred capital receipts – moved from the long term liabilities
	2,598 

	Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve – prior period adjustment relating to Airport Land 
	7,663 

	Capital financing account – prior period adjustment requiring reclassification to a long term debtor
	413 

	Net Worth 31 March 2006 in 2005/06 comparatives
	494,776


1.
Central Services to the Public


This includes the following items:

· Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates collection costs

· Council Tax benefit payments and administration

· Registration of Electors, Births, Deaths and Marriages

· Land Charges

· General Grants, Bequests and Donations

2.
Housing Services

This service includes a net cost of £5.4m (£11.4m in 2005/06) relating to the write-off to revenue of capital expenditure in respect of private sector housing schemes.  The cost is transferred to the capital financing account via the Grants and Contributions Deferred entry in the revenue account and therefore it has no impact on the amount to be met from government grants and local taxpayers.

3.
Salford Pooled Budgets

The pooled budget mechanism is a means by which the Council and Salford NHS Primary Care Trust can bring resources together to both commission and provide services, allowing flexible and integrated support and care to be offered.  The Council now acts as ‘host’ to three pooled budgets, the income and expenditure for each of which is set out below.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	a)
Learning Difficulties Pool
	
	

	
Pooled fund income:
	
	

	

Council contribution
	9,943 
	8,531 

	
Salford NHS PCT contribution
	8,983 
	8,605 

	
Client & other non-pool income
	4,916 
	4,584 

	
Total pooled fund income
	23,842 
	21,720 

	
Gross pooled fund expenditure
	(23,842)
	(21,291)

	
Surplus for the year
	0
	429 

	
	
	

	b)
Integrated Equipment Services Pool
	
	

	
Pooled fund income:
	
	

	

Council contribution
	1,120 
	1,179 

	

Salford NHS PCT contribution
	1,493 
	1,376 

	

Client & other non-pool income
	358 
	243 

	
Total pooled fund income
	2,971 
	2,798 

	
Gross pooled fund expenditure
	(2,971)
	(2,680)

	
Surplus for the year
	0 
	118 

	
	
	

	c)
The National Treatment Allocation Adult Pool
	
	

	
Pooled fund income:
	
	

	

Council contribution
	415 
	338 

	

Salford NHS PCT contribution
	2,272 
	1,946 

	

Client & other non-pool income
	1,341 
	1,182 

	
Total pooled fund income
	4,028 
	3,466 

	
Gross pooled fund expenditure
	(4,028)
	(3,291)

	
Surplus for the year
	0
	175 

	
	
	



The Council's share of the pools' expenditure is included within Social Services in the Income & Expenditure Account.


The Council and Salford NHS PCT budget for an annual contribution to each pool.  In the event of this exceeding pool expenditure, the surplus is redistributed to the partners, so that income exactly meets expenditure.  The redistribution is in the ratio of their original contributions to the pool as follows

· Learning Difficulties, Council 48:52 PCT;

· IES, Council 50:50 PCT;

· NTA, Council 19:81 PCT


In the event of a budget shortfall, additional contributions are to be made by each partner so that pool income meets expenditure.  The Council has earmarked a Pooled Budget Reserve, created in 2006/07, for the purpose of meeting any such shortfall in its share of contributions.


The redistribution mechanism represents a change in practice.  In previous years, any surplus or deficit has been accumulated within an account held within creditors on the Council's balance sheet, with a note describing the proportions attributable to each party.  The part of that balance attributable to the PCT has now been redistributed to the PCT, and the remaining balance appropriated to form the new 31 Pooled Budget Reserve.

4.
Non-Distributed Costs

This includes the following items:

· Depreciation on non-operational assets

· Pension past service costs (see note on Defined Benefit Pension Schemes)

5.
Exceptional Items

This is the cost of settling equal pay claims.  A direction from the DCLG allows £3.431m of this amount to be capitalised leaving the remaining to be funded from revenue.


The element related to the provision made for future settlements is reversed out in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to ensure that the charge to council tax reflects only payments actually made in the year.  This reversal is appropriated to the equal pay back pay account earmarked reserve.

6.
Trading Undertakings, including Dividends from Associate Companies

(i)
Direct Service Organisations (DSOs)


Details of the trading performance in respect of DSOs are shown later in the Trading Accounts.


(ii)
Markets



The Council operates trading undertakings at 2 markets, located at Eccles and Swinton, the results of which were as follows :-

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	
	
	

	Expenditure 

Income
	289 

(199)
	 280 

(219)

	
	 
	

	(Profit)/Deficit
	90 
	 61 



(iii)
Building Control



The Building (Local Authority Charges) regulations 1998 require the disclosure of information regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the Building Control function.  However, certain activities performed by the Building Control section cannot be charged for, such as providing general advice and liaising with other statutory authorities.  The statement below shows the total cost of operating the Building Control function divided between chargeable and non-chargeable activities.


There can be a variation in the level of surplus or deficit on chargeable functions from year to year, arising from charge income being received in advance of the expenditure incurred to conduct building control inspections.  The Building Prescribed Fee Regulations 1994 therefore require that authorities maintain a rolling three year account to ensure that the function is adequately resourced and breaks even over project life.

	
	Chargeable
	Non

Chargeable
	2006/07

Total Building

Control
	Chargeable
	Non

Chargeable
	2005/06

Total Building Control

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Expenditure
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Employees
	333 
	355 
	688 
	285 
	308 
	593 

	Premises
	- 
	- 
	- 
	- 
	- 
	- 

	Transport
	12 
	16 
	28 
	11 
	16 
	27 

	Supplies & Services
	192 
	- 
	192 
	195 
	- 
	195 

	Central &   Support Services
	2 
	1 
	3 
	10 
	8 
	18 

	Total
	539 
	372
	911 
	501 
	332
	833 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Building Regs
	
	
	
	
	
	

	  Charges
	(569)
	- 
	(569)
	(749)
	- 
	(749)

	Misc. Income
	- 
	(192)
	(192)
	- 
	(217)
	(217)

	Total
	(569)
	(192)
	(761)
	(749)
	(217)
	(966)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Surplus)/deficit

for the year
	(30)
	180 
	150 
	(248)
	115 
	(133)



(iv)
Dividend from associate company


A dividend of £861,000 was received in 2006/07 from Chapel Wharf Ltd.

7.
Housing Pooled Receipts

Under the Local Government Act 2003, Local Authorities are required to pay over to the Secretary of State specified amounts of any capital receipts derived from the disposal of an interest in housing land after the 1 April 2004.  The specified amounts are 75% in relation to the disposal of dwellings and 50% in relation to the disposal of any other interest in housing land.

8.
Investment Gains & Losses

Realised losses on investments with Scottish Widows Investment Partnership (£61,000) and on the writing out of the balance sheet of the Council’s investment in Salford University Business Enterprises Ltd, SUBEL (£335,000) (see note on Related businesses and companies).  The loss was offset by the £40,600 capital receipt of a distribution of the companies assets in 2005/06.
9a.
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other non-teacher employees, the Council offers retirement benefits through membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  This is a contributory occupational pension scheme, which is contracted out of the State Second Pension, and provides members with benefits related to final salary and length of service.  


Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments.  The commitment needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.


For LGPS members, the Council makes an employer’s contribution based on pensionable employees’ pensionable pay into the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF), administered by Tameside MBC.  The contribution rate is determined by the Fund’s actuary on triennial actuarial valuation.  For 2006/07 the contribution rate was based on a valuation as at 31 March 2004.  In 2006/07, the Council paid an employer’s contribution of £13.3m (£11.5m in 2005/06), based on 11.9% of employees’ pensionable pay (10.9% in 2005/06).  


The LGPS is a funded scheme, meaning that the employer’s and employees’ contributions into the fund (the GMPF) are calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.  The Fund meets the costs of basic pensions and the corresponding Pension Increase Act payments.  The costs of pensions on discretionary added years awarded to employees under the early retirement scheme, and the related Pensions Increase Act payments, are met in full by the Council.


In addition, while the Teachers’ Pension scheme is otherwise treated as a defined contribution scheme (see note 10b below for details of this scheme), any mandatory or discretionary added years element awarded on early retirements is treated in these accounts in the same manner as the GMPF, that is as a defined benefit scheme.


For defined benefit schemes, the accounts show the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the charge made against council tax has to be based on the cash payable in the year so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the Income and Expenditure Account after Net Operating Expenditure.  The following table summarises the transactions made in the Income and Expenditure Account during the year.

	
	Local Government

Pensions Scheme
	Teachers’ Pensions

(added years element)

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Within net cost of services:


Current service cost


Past service cost


Impact of settlements and curtailments
	23,900 

400 

200 
	17,500 

500 

1,300 
	
	200 

400 

	
	
	
	
	

	Within net operating expenditure:


Interest cost


Expected return on assets in the scheme
	36,900 

(38,700)
	33,600 

(33,100)
	1,700 
	1,800 

	
	
	
	
	

	Amounts to be met from Govt.

Grants and Local Taxation:


Movement on pension reserve
	(7,200)
	(6,200)
	600 
	(100)

	
	15,500 
	13,600 
	2,300 
	2,300 

	Actual amount charged against

Council Tax for pensions in year:


Employer’s contributions payable to scheme


Discretionary awards benefits payable to pensioners
	13,300 

2,200 
	11,500 

2,100 
	2,300 
	2,300 

	
	15,500 
	13,600 
	2,300 
	2,300 



The actuarially-estimated underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the Council are set out in the table below.

	
	Local Government Pension Scheme
	Teachers’ Pensions

(added years element)
	Total

	
	31/03/07

£000s
	31/03/06

£000s
	31/03/07

£000s
	31/03/06

£000s
	31/03/07

£000s
	31/03/06

£000s

	Present value of scheme liabilities
	(715,400)
	(714,200)
	-
	-   
	(715,400)
	(714,200)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Present value of unfunded liabilities
	(34,300)
	(35,100)
	(34,800)
	(35,800)
	(69,100)
	(70,900)

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Assets
	636,700
	592,500
	-
	-
	636,700 
	592,500

	Net liability
	(113,000)
	(156,800)
	(34,800)
	(35,800)
	(147,800)
	(192,600)



The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay retirement benefits; the total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth as recorded in the balance sheet.  However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy:

· the deficit on the LGPS will be made good by increasing contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary;

· finance is only required to be raised to cover teachers’ added years benefits when the pensions are actually paid.


The pensions liability has been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method of valuation, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc.  Both the GMPF and the teachers' added years element have been assessed by the GMPF’s actuary, Hymans Robertson.  The GMPF is formally valued every three years with the value being rolled forward using certain assumptions in the interim periods.  The most recent full actuarial valuation of the fund was as at the 31 March 2004.


The main assumptions used in the actuary’s calculations are set out below:

	
	Assumptions

As at 31/3/07

% per annum
	Assumptions

As at 31/3/06

% per annum

	Rate of inflation

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 
	3.2

4.7 (1.5 real)

3.2

5.4 (2.1 real)
	3.1

4.6 (1.5 real)

3.1

4.9 (1.7 real)



The teachers’ pension scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities.  Assets in the GMPF are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments.  The categories of assets held are set out below, by proportion of the assets held by the whole of the fund.

	Assets
	Long-term return

at 31/3/07
	Assets at 31/3/07
	Long-term return

at 31/3/06
	Assets at 

31/3/06

	
	%
	£000s
	%
	£000s

	Equities

Bonds

Property

Cash
	7.8

4.9

5.8

4.9
	425,400

101,400

62,700

47,200
	7.4

4.6

5.5

4.6
	388,100

94,200

55,000

55,200

	Total
	6.9
	636,700
	6.5
	592,500



A copy of the Fund’s annual report may be obtained by writing to Greater Manchester Pension Fund, Concord Suite, Manchester Road, Droylsden, Tameside M43 6SF, or from their website at www.gmpf.org.uk

Changes to the local government pension scheme


Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme permit employees retiring on or after 6 April 2006 to take an increase in their lump sum payment on retirement in exchange for a reduction in their future annual pension.  On the advice of our actuaries we have taken the view that there is insufficiently reliable evidence to assume a level of take-up of the change in the pension scheme.  Consequently the valuation of the Council's retirement benefit liabilities as at 31 March 2006 does not include any allowance for this change to the pension scheme.


9b.
Defined Contribution Pension Schemes


As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its teacher employees, the Council offers retirement benefits through membership of the pension scheme for teachers administered by the Teachers’ Pensions Agency on behalf of the Department for Education and Skills (DfES).  This is a contributory final salary occupational pension scheme, which is contracted out of the State Second Pension. The Council pays an employer’s contribution based on employees’ pensionable pay to the Teachers’ Pensions Agency.  The contribution rate is set by the DfES on a notional fund basis.  The scheme provides members with benefits related to final salary and length of service.  The teachers’ pension scheme meets the costs of basic pensions and the corresponding Pensions Increase Act payments.


In 2006/07, the Council paid an employer’s contribution of £8.150m (£8.040m in 2005/06) based on 13.5% of employees’ pensionable pay up to December 2006 and 14.1% thereafter (13.5% in 2005/06).  


There are no contributions remaining payable at the year-end relating to the DfES’s pensions scheme for teachers.


The teachers’ pension scheme is a defined benefit scheme.  However, it is not possible for the Council to identify its share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme.  In accordance with the SORP, it is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme and there are no scheme assets or liabilities recognised on the balance sheet, except in relation to the added years element.


The Council is responsible for the costs of benefits on mandatory or discretionary added years awarded on teachers’ early retirements.  This element is treated as a defined contribution scheme and these benefits are fully accrued in the pensions liability described in note 9a above.


The pension scheme for teachers is an unfunded scheme, meaning that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions payments as they eventually fall due.


The costs of pensions on mandatory or discretionary added years awarded on teachers’ early retirements, and the related Pensions Increase Act payments, are met in full direct by the Council.  This element is treated as a defined contribution scheme and dealt with in accordance with note 10a above.

10.
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

On 20 March 2003 the Council entered into a 26 year PFI arrangement (“PFI 1”) with Eccles Special High School Company Ltd. for the provision of three new Special High Schools.  The first payment made under the terms of this contract was made in 2004/05 and the contract expires in 2029/30.  Over the remaining 24 years of this contract the Council is committed to making gross payments estimated at £60.068m (average payment per year is £2.503m).  However, the net cost to the Council after income from Specific Government Grant is estimated at £32.030m (average payment per year is £1.335m).   The actual payments made will depend upon the performance of the service provider.  The balance of risk relating to the assets falls to be met by the service provider and the assets are not held on the Council’s balance sheet.

In November 2006, the Council entered into a 25 year (post construction) PFI arrangement (“PFI12”) with Hochtief for the provision of two new high schools.  Construction commenced in January 2007 on a £38 million project.  At 31 March 2007, construction was approximately 5% complete (£1.9million).  The schools will open and the first payments will be made under the contract in September 2008.  The proposed accounting treatment is that the assets will not be held on the Council’s balance sheet, similar to that for PFI1 above.  A review of the balance of risk will be undertaken in conjunction with the Council’s auditors during 2007/08 to confirm the appropriateness of the proposed treatment.
11.
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme (LABGI)

The Council has received £1.2m (£1.0m in 2005/06) under the government's scheme to stimulate economic development activity in the city.  DCLG announced in September 2007 that the Council are to receive an additional £0.632m following the outcome of a judicial review of the LABGI scheme.  The grant is linked to the increase in the total rateable value of new property in the city.  The Government's objective is to encourage and reward local authorities that stimulate economic development activity within their areas.

12.
Publicity

Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986, requires expenditure on publicity to be disclosed.  Detailed below is the Council’s expenditure incurred in 2006/07 together with the comparative figures for 2005/06.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s

	
	
	

	Recruitment advertising
	660
	861

	Marketing, promotions & advertising
	1,853
	1,646

	
	
	

	Total
	2,513
	2,507


13.
Leases

The Council holds various assets under operating leases.  


The lease rentals paid during the year were £2.440m (£1.428m in 2005/06)


As at 31 March 2007 the Council  has a commitment to meet the following leasing charges :-





£000s





2007/08

1,473



2008/09

1,402



2009/10 to 2011/2012
2,769
total estimated rentals outstanding


The cost of the assets and the liability for future rental payments are not recorded in the balance sheet.


The Council also acts as lessor to a number of industrial and commercial properties.  The rental income derived from these properties in 2006/07 is £2.819m (£2.934m in 2005/06).  The associated assets are classed as Commercial and Investment properties and the respective values are shown in the Fixed Assets note to the consolidated balance sheet. 

14.
Local Authority (Goods and Services) Act 1970

Local authorities are empowered by this Act to provide goods and services to other public bodies.  During 2006/07 payroll services were provided to Eccles 6th Form College, the Salfordian Trust and Unison to a value of £4,670 (£4,670 in 2005/06).  Computer audit services were provided to various authorities to the value of £149,456 (£165,040 in 2005/06) and IT training to the value of £82,277 (£81,830 in 2005/06).

15.
Members’ Allowances

The Council has 60 elected members to whom £0.971m was paid in allowances in the year (£0.926m in 2005/06).

16.
Employees’ Remuneration

The number of employees whose remuneration was £50,000 or more is set out in the table below

	Remuneration Band
	

Number of Employees

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	£50,000 - £59,999
	106
	83

	£60,000 - £69,999
	46
	47

	£70,000 - £79,999
	20
	9

	£80,000 - £89,999
	1
	3

	£90,000 - £99,999
	5
	4

	£100,000 - £109,999
	0
	2

	£110,000 - £119,999
	2
	0

	£120,000 - £129,999
	0
	1

	£130,000 - £139,999
	1
	0

	Total
	181
	149


17.
Related Party Transactions       
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  The disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which there exists the possibility that the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many transactions that the Council has with other parties (eg housing benefits).  Details of grants received from government departments are set out in a note to the Cash Flow Statement.

Other Public Bodies which have a financial relationship with the Council through the ability to precept or levy are disclosed in a note to the Income and Expenditure Account.  The Council also works in close partnership with the health service and its joint financing of s31 pooled budgets is disclosed in a note to the Income and Expenditure Account.  

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies.  Their relevant interests outside of the Council are recorded in the Registers of Interests and of Gifts and Hospitality which are available for public inspection.  A number of members hold official positions in organisations independent of their role as elected members of the Council.  Where the Council has contracts for services and/or has awarded grants to such organisations, the Council's standing orders were fully complied with, with proper consideration of any declarations of interests.

Members hold positions on the boards of various community and voluntary organisations in and around Salford.  In 2006/07 £364,704 of the Council's expenditure related to such declared member interests.

One member also acts as Chair of the Board of Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust.  In 2006/07, £342,869 of payments were made to the Trust from the Council and £113,226 of payments were received

Where Members sit on company boards in an official capacity as representatives of the Council, transactions with such organisations have been disclosed as and where necessary.

Officers may be in a position to influence financial or operational practices.  There were no transactions in 2006/07 with bodies in which officers had a pecuniary interest and were able to exercise such an influence.


Related Businesses and Companies – the Council has interests in several companies which are disclosed in a note to the Balance Sheet.  Other potential obligations to related companies are disclosed in the Contingent Liabilities note to the Balance Sheet.  Where the Council’s interest is sufficient to allow the Council potentially to inhibit the other party from pursuing its own interests, material transactions and balances have been disclosed in notes to the Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet.

18.
Agency Income and Expenditure

The net cost of services includes the following amounts which are charged by levy for services not directly provided by the Council.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Highways, Roads and Transport Services

  Greater Manchester Passenger Transport Authority


	12,438
	10,197

	Environmental Services

  Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authority


	8,225
	7,731

	  Environment Agency - Flood Defence


	93
	89

	Association of Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) 

Secretariat


	117
	60

	AGMA - Other units
	66
	60



The Council provides legal, financial, personnel, administrative and valuation and estates services to the Greater Manchester Police Authority under the terms of an annually negotiated service level agreement.  The cost of these services which is fully reimbursed was £2.234m (£2.241m in 2005/06).

19.
Audit Costs

The Statement of Recommended Practice now requires the Council to disclose the amount it has paid to the external auditors for work carried out in performing statutory functions and providing any additional services, such as tax advice.


In 2006/07 the Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit and inspection:-

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	
	
	

	· Fees payable to the Audit Commission with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor


	316
	325

	· Fees payable to the Audit Commission in respect of statutory inspection


	21
	80

	· Fees payable to the Audit Commission for the certification of grant claim work


	97
	105

	· Fees payable in respect of other services provided by the appointed auditor


	15
	-

	Total
	449
	510


20.
S137 of the Local Government Act 1972

S137 of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, empowers local authorities to make contributions to certain charitable funds, not-for-profit bodies providing a public service in the United Kingdom, and mayoral appeals.  The Council did not utilise this power in 2006/07 or 2005/06.

21.
Intangible Assets

	
	Purchased Software Licences

£000s

	
	

	Original Cost
	501 

	Amortisation to 1st April 2006
	(100)

	Balance as 1st April 2006
	401 

	Expenditure in the year
	16 

	Written off to the revenue in year
	(116)

	Balance at 31st March 2007
	301



A software licence is held for the SAP system business suite and which is used to assist in the management of our finances, employees, materials and projects.  It cost £0.501m in 2005/06 and it is to be written off on a straight-line basis over five years based on the minimum estimated life of the related asset.


Expenditure in 2006/07 relates to the licence purchased for a document imaging system which is used to assist in the management of our finances and projects.  The full cost has been written off in 2006/07.

22.
Tangible Fixed Assets


Movements in the value of fixed assets during the year were as set out below :-


Operational assets

	
	Council Dwellings
	Other Land

& Bldgs
	Vehicles, Plant etc.
	Infra-

structure
	Community Assets
	Total

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Gross Book Value at 31 March 2006
	790,179 
	270,117 
	15,245 
	180,071 
	1 
	1,255,613 

	Capital expenditure during year
	18,377 
	7,683 
	2,915 
	11,859 
	1,463 
	42,297

	Re-classification of Assets
	0 
	(7,398)
	0 
	0 
	0 
	(7,398)

	Disposals
	(23,026)
	(383)
	(1,183)
	0 
	0 
	(24,592)

	Revaluations during year
	111,844 
	(3,601)
	(45)
	(200)
	(1,463)
	106,535 

	Impairments
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Gross Book Value at 31 March 2007
	897,374 
	266,418 
	16,932 
	191,730 
	1 
	1,372,455 

	Depreciation at 31 March 2006
	(15,944)
	(14,236)
	(6,166)
	(119,640)
	0 
	(155,986)

	Depreciation for year
	(16,270)
	(5,636)
	(2,993)
	(10,870)
	0 
	(35,769)

	Depreciation on revalued assets
	15,944 
	1,889 
	0 
	0 
	0 
	17,833 

	Depreciation on sold assets
	0 
	182 
	1,184 
	0 
	0 
	1,366 

	Net Book Value at 31 March 2007
	881,104 
	248,617 
	8,957 
	61,220 
	1 
	1,199,899 


Non-Operational Assets are set out overleaf

Non-Operational Assets

	
	Investment Properties
	Surplus Assets
	Assets Under

Construction
	Total

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Gross Book Value at 31 March 2006
	38,889
	45,317 
	4,836 
	89,042 

	Capital expenditure during year
	6,112 
	20,123 
	19,168 
	45,403 

	Re-classification of Assets
	1,691 
	5,707 
	0 
	7,398 

	Disposals
	(4,772)
	(9,732)
	0 
	(14,504)

	Revaluations during year
	4,967 
	8,973 
	(3,006)
	10,934 

	Impairments
	(47)
	(31)
	0 
	(78)

	Gross Book Value at 31 March 2007
	46,840 
	70,357 
	20,998 
	138,195 

	Depreciation at 31 March 2006
	0 
	(197)
	0 
	(197)

	Depreciation for year
	(3)
	(282)
	0 
	(285)

	Depreciation on revalued adjustment
	3 
	120 
	0 
	123 

	Depreciation on sold assets
	0 
	38 
	0 
	38 

	Net Book Value at 31 March 2007
	46,840 
	70,036 
	20,998 
	137,874 


Notes:

The City Council revalues its tangible fixed assets (excluding those held at historic cost value) over a five-year rolling programme.  All of the applicable assets have been valued within this timeframe and details of the valuation dates applicable to the above assets values are included in the note below entitled Rolling Programme for the Revaluation of Fixed Assets.
Infrastructure assets are valued at historical cost net of depreciation.

Community Assets were given a nominal value of £1 each as at 1 April 1994 and subsequently only adjusted to reflect disposals and acquisitions which, for consistency are also reflected at a £1 nominal valuation.  Other associated works on environmental improvements etc. are not considered to materially affect the asset value.

Land operational properties and other operational assets are valued at the lower of net current replacement cost and net realisable value in existing use.

Non-operational assets are valued at market value. The gross book value includes £7.663m reflecting the Council’s share of the property and the rights associated with land at Manchester Airport, previously not included in the accounts.  This land was transferred to the GM Authorities via a trust deed drawn up in March 1994 following the abolition of the GMC.  The deed sets out that the assets and liabilities under this agreement are to be shared in the agreed proportions 58.202% to Manchester City Council and 41.798% to be equally divided by the other nine GM authorities.  The total value of this asset is £164.630m and is derived from a market valuation carried out by a Manchester City Council valuer in 2005/06.  Rental income associated with this land has been received each year (£426k in 2006/07) following the agreement but the requirement to account for our share of the asset has only come to light in 2006/07.
Investment properties are those assets held by the Council but not utilised in the direct delivery of a service.  They generally relate to rental income bearing properties.  

The value of the Council's housing stock is based on a full revaluation in April 2006.  The basis of the valuation is existing use value for social housing which reflects a value for a property if it were to be sold with sitting tenants, enjoying rents at less than open market value and rights including the 'option to buy'.  

The valuer is - R. Wynne MRICS (Urban Vision Partnership Ltd.) 

Financing of Capital Expenditure

The Council’s capital expenditure and details of how it was financed are as follows.
	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Opening Capital Financing Requirement
	
	479,811 
	
	458,090 

	
	
	
	
	

	Capital investment
	
	
	
	

	    Operational assets
	30,438
	
	37,602 
	

	    Infrastructure assets
	11,859
	
	17,190 
	

	    Non-operational assets
	45,403
	
	7,870 
	

	    Intangible assets
	16
	
	501 
	

	Sub total assets
	
	87,716 
	
	63,163 

	Deferred consideration

Deferred charges

Investments
	
	6,251 

29,542 

167 
	
	2,580 

36,827 

	
	
	
	
	

	Sources of finance
	
	
	
	

	Capital receipts
	
	(24,715)
	
	(12,223)

	Government grants and other contributions
	
	(55,527)
	
	(45,221)

	Revenue provision (includes MRP)
	
	(24,287)
	
	(23,405)

	
	
	
	
	

	Closing Capital Financing Requirement
	
	498,958 
	
	479,811

	
	
	
	
	

	Explanation of movements in the year
	
	
	
	

	Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported by Government financial assistance)
	
	7,503 
	
	19,544 

	
	
	
	
	

	Airport loan provision
	
	(88)
	
	(220)

	
	
	
	
	

	Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by Government financial assistance)
	
	19,054 
	
	8,536 

	
	
	
	
	

	Provision for debt repayment and set aside capital receipts
	
	(7,322)
	
	(6,139)

	Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement
	
	19,147 
	
	21,721 


Statement of Major Physical Assets
The Council utilised the following major fixed assets in the delivery of services in 2006/07:

Children’s Services
Community, Health & Social Care

16
libraries
10
children’s homes


3
art galleries & museums
3
day nurseries & family centres


3
leisure centres with pools
2
elderly persons’ homes


6
leisure centres without pools
2
adult training centres


3
pools
4
handicapped persons’ homes


4
nursery schools
8
day centres


40
primary schools
11 
community centres


9
secondary schools


1
special schools
Trading Services

11
youth centres

2
halls


15
caretakers’ houses

2
markets


4
pupil referral units


Environmental Services
Other Buildings

4
cemeteries

24
civic offices


2
crematoria

1
depots





10
other buildings

Planning


149
industrial units
Vehicles*





67
refuse/street cleansing vehicles

Council dwellings

2
mobile libraries


13,067
houses

1
limousines


1,364
bungalows

65
vans


11,111
flats 

41
trucks






7
car






51
mini buses and coaches






8
other





* Majority of vehicles are leased

Infrastructure

Land


87km
principal roads
1,543
hectares


62km
other classified roads


623km
unclassified roads

Commitments under Capital Contracts
The Council has to plan its capital expenditure in advance of work proceeding.  At the 31 March 2007 the Council had approved a Capital Programme for 2007/08 amounting to £114.8m which will result in commitments being carried forward into future years.  A total amount of £52.1m was contractually committed at the 31 March 2007 and the significant contracts under these capital schemes were as follows :-

	
	£m



	Private sector housing

Public sector housing

Cadishead Way

Manchester/Salford Inner Relief Road

Worsley Pool

Primary Review

New Deal for Schools Condition/Modernisation

Childrens Centres

Surplus place removal St. Clements/Radclyffe


	39.2

0.8

2.9

0.3

0.3

0.6

1.7

3.2

2.5


Rolling Programme for the Revaluation of Fixed Assets

The following statement shows the progress of the Council’s rolling programme for the revaluation of fixed assets.  The basis of the valuation is shown in the statement of accounting policies.  Infrastructure, Community and Vehicles, Plant and Equipment assets are effectively valued at historical cost net of depreciation and they are therefore excluded from the programme of revaluations and from the table shown below.

	
	Council

Dwellings
	Other Land & Buildings
	Non-

Operational

Assets
	Total

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Valued at current value in :
	
	
	
	

	- current year

- 2005/06

- 2004/05

- 2003/04

- 2002/03
	897,374
	24,489

22,171

79,343

128,957

11,458
	49,759

26,306

13,905

7,991

11,573
	971,622

48,477

93,248

136,948

23,031

	
	897,374
	266,418
	109,534
	1,273,326


23.
Analysis of Net Assets Employed
	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	General Fund

Housing Revenue Account

Collection Fund

DSOs
	(108,263)

752,020 

885 

(6,663)
	(129,698)

636,908 

- 

(12,434)

	
	637,979 
	494,776


24.
Investments

Long-term investments consist of shareholdings in companies and investments in financial markets, for cash flow purposes, for a period of one year or greater.

	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Investments in companies

Manchester Airport plc

SUBEL Ltd

Chapel Wharf Ltd

LIFT

Other
	10,214

-

15

167
1
	10,214

335

15

-

1

	
	10,397
	10,565

	Investments in the financial market
	10,000
	10,000

	Total 
	20,397
	20,565



Further details concerning shareholdings are included in the note on related businesses and companies.  The investments are shown in the balance sheet at their original cost.


The Council also holds short-term investments.  These are balances which are temporarily surplus to requirements and have been invested in financial markets, for cash flow purposes, for periods shorter than one year.  In 2005/06, the Council commissioned Scottish Widows Investment Partnership to manage part of its short-term investment portfolio.  The value of this portfolio was £20.7m at 31 March 2007 (£20.0m at 31 March 2006).  The remaining balance of £17.0m at 31 March 2007 (£29.150m at 31 March 2006) is managed by the Council direct.


Forward Investment Deal


On 9 January 2007 the Council committed to a forward investment of £3m with effect from 16 April 2007 in the form of a callable deposit for a term of three years, with biannual calls.


Related Party Transactions


Included in the temporary investment balance is £990,000 invested on behalf of Salford Community Leisure (£870,000 at 31 March 2006).

25.
Premiums and Discounts

The discount given by the Council on loan stock previously issued is being charged to revenue over the original life of the stock.


Premiums and discounts on the early repayment of debt, where undertaken as part of debt rescheduling exercises, are being recognised in the Income & Expenditure and Housing Revenue accounts over the life of the replacement debt.



The balance sheet amounts represent the deferred amounts yet to be recognised in the revenue account.


Debt Rescheduling 2006/07


Two LOBO loans totalling £47m were restructured, securing interest savings.  These restructurings did not result in any new premiums or discounts.


Early repayment of PWLB loans during the year generated discounts of £1.14m that were apportioned between the General Fund, £0.568m, and HRA, £0.573m.

26.
Deferred consideration

In 2005/06 the Council entered into an innovative arrangement with Manchester Care, a not-for-profit company, for the provision of care facilities.  The Council funded the capital costs of the building works by way of capital grant.  In consideration, the Council is receiving a reduction in the weekly bed fees charged over the 25-year life of the contract.  The land and buildings revert back to the Council after 25 years, or if Manchester Care cannot fulfil their obligations under the contract.


The initial deferred charge of the capital grant is being written off to revenue over the life of the contract.  The deferred consideration is the unamortised amount, recognising the economic benefit of the future reduction in bed fees that will be payable by the Council.


In the 2005/06 accounts, this item was held within long-term debtors.  The revised description more accurately reflects the substance of the transaction.

27.
Long-Term Debtors
	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Residual interest in PFI asset

Mortgagors

Manchester Airport plc (see below)

Car loans

Home swaps & equity loans

Other
	1,872

230

8,138

552

3,463
914
	1,248

276

8,382

613

1,981

926

	
	15,169
	13,426



The Council, along with the other nine authorities in Greater Manchester, is responsible for loan advances made to Manchester Airport plc to assist in the financing of Terminal 2.  The annual servicing costs of the loans are reimbursed by the Airport.  The proportion of the loan advances applicable to the Council is shown in the table above.


Related Party Transactions


Included in other is £509,000 representing the balance on a loan made to the Higher Broughton Partnership (£413,000 as at 31 March 2006).

28.
Stocks and Work in Progress
	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Stocks and stores

Provisions
	619 

- 
	996 

- 

	
	619 
	996 

	Less:  Provision for future losses
	(12)
	(12)

	
	607
	984 


29.
Debtors and Prepayments

An analysis of debtors and prepayments is shown below.

	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Government departments

Other local authorities

Local taxpayers and NDR

Housing rents (net of prepayments)

Sundry debtors

Housing Benefits (overpayments)

Other public bodies

Other

Accrued interest on investments
	17,033 

6,332 

23,073 

7,537 

6,784 

3,528 

4,883 

14,700 

1,692 
	20,514 

7,728 

23,487 

6,459 

4,911 

3,815 

3,468 

6,912 

1,499 

	
	85,562 
	78,793 

	Less:  Provision for bad debts
	(20,651)
	(19,921)

	Total debtors

Prepayments
	64,911 

10,551 
	58,872 

2,969 

	
	75,462 
	61,841 



Related Party Transactions

The figures for sundry and other debtors include the following amounts :

· Urban Vision Partnership Ltd (UVPL)
£312,000

· New Prospect Housing Ltd. (NPHL)
£2,093,000

· Salford Community Leisure (SCL)
£188,000

· Higher Broughton Partnership
£510,000

30a
Borrowing – amounts falling due within one year

This comprises temporary loans borrowed for a period of less than one year and repayments due within one year on longer-term loans, including a PWLB loan of £25.5m due to mature in February 2008.

	Source of Loan
	31 March 2007

£000
	31 March 2006

£000

	Public Works Loan Board

Temporary loans

Transferred debt, Lancs CC

Transferred debt, GMC
	25,994

24,600

49

460
	444

0

52

458

	
	51,103
	954



Temporary loans during 2006/07 were taken to manage the Council’s short-term cash flow requirement and were repaid at the beginning of 2007/08.

30b
Long-Term Borrowing

An analysis of long-term loans is shown below :-

	Source of Loan
	Range of Interest Rates Payable

%


	Total Outstanding at

	
	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Public Works Loan Board

Money market

Stock

L.C.C.


	4.20 to 11.50

3.65 to 11.38

7.00 to 8.25

5.26


	136,454
236,200
95,567

413


	174,448
236,200
95,567

462



	
	
	468,634
	506,677



These loans are repayable over the following periods.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Maturing in 1-2 years

Maturing in 2-5 years

Maturing in 5-10 years

Maturing in 10-15 years

Maturing in more than 15 years
	598

4,189

42,755

43,413

377,679
	543

27,486

40,552

41,405

396,691



	
	468,634
	506,677


31.
Creditors and Receipts in Advance
	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Government departments

Other local Authorities

Local Taxpayers and NDR

Housing rents

Other Public Bodies

Sundry creditors

Residents’ savings

Section 31 Pooled Budgets

Other 
	24,942
655

2,303

144

8,500

32,431

876

-

5,683
	27,143

556

2,940

109

4,909

29,729

729

1,256

5,321

	
	75,534
	72,692



The item Developer's Contributions, included in previous years, has been moved to deferred credits within long-term liabilities.



Related Party Transactions

The figure for creditors includes the following amounts :

· New Prospect Housing Ltd. (NPHL)
£2,186,000

· Salford Community Leisure (SCL)
£1,552,000

· Urban Vision Partnership Ltd.
£206,000


The Council holds £990,000 invested on behalf of SCL (£870,000 at 31 March 2006).  This sum is included in the figures quoted above.

32.
Provisions

	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Provisions
	
	

	Equal Pay
	2,398
	-

	Provision for future costs
	-
	295

	Repayment of grant
	2,575
	1,467

	Charging policy income
	-
	247

	Other
	1,360
	145

	
	6,333
	2,154



Equal Pay - amounts earmarked for the settlement of equal pay claims.  The exact timing and amount of the settlements are dependent on acceptance of the Council's offer or determination of a tribunal.


Repayment of grant - amounts have been earmarked for the probable repayment in 2007/08 of grants, and subsidy received in 2006/07.


Other - probable expenses to be paid during 2007/08.

33.
Deferred Liabilities

This item comprises mainly the Council’s share of the debt outstanding in respect of the former Greater Manchester County Council when that body was wound up on the 31 March 1986.

Also included are contributions from developers, mainly relating to s106 agreements, that the Council has yet to spend on the agreed purpose.


The balance also includes sums invested on behalf of trust funds.

	
	31 March 2007

£000s
	31 March 2006

£000s

	Debt transferred from the former GMC

Developer's contributions

Trust Funds investments

Private street works
	12,184
3,747

195

6
	12,644
2,708

197

6

	
	16,132
	15,555


34.
Dividend Income

Income on “simple investments”, that is shareholdings with companies where the Council’s interest is insufficient to be consolidated in the group accounts as subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.


In 2006/07, this is a Manchester Airport Group (MAG) plc dividend of £1.250m (2005/06, a MAG dividend of £1.250m and a Modesole dividend of £0.279mm).  Further details of MAG can be found under the note Related Businesses and Companies.

35.
Lowry Receipt in Advance

In 2005/06, the Council received £1.576m from The Lowry as an advance payment of a 30 year lease on the Lowry Collection of paintings.  The income is being recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account over 30 years, and the receipt in advance represents the balance not yet credited.

36.
Insurance Fund

The Council maintains an insurance fund to meet the excess amount of any liability and fire claims not covered by its external insurers.


The fund meets liability claims that are settled for amounts of less than £250,000 with external insurers covering the remainder.  It meets fire claims up to £10,000 for dwellings and up to £100,000 for schools, with external insurers covering the balance.


The fund consists of a provision to cover actual claims made and a reserve to provide a contingency against potential future claims.

37.
Government Grants Deferred Account

Capital grants received and accrued are credited initially to the government grants deferred account.  The grant is then written off to the relevant service revenue account over the life of the asset, thereby matching the depreciation of the asset.
	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Balance brought forward
	75,699 
	68,684 

	Received and accrued in year from government departments
	56,376 
	38,096 

	
	
	

	Less:
Grants on non-depreciating assets
	- 
	(1,302)

	
Grants relating to deferred charges


Release to match depreciation charged
	(19,389)

(5,945)
	(24,787)

(4,992)

	Balance carried forward
	106,741 
	75,699 

	
	
	

	Represented by :
	
	

	Applied grants
	105,959 
	75,766 

	Unapplied grants
	782 
	(67)

	
	106,741 
	75,699 


38.
Contingent Assets and Liabilities


a.
Municipal Mutual Insurance


On the 30 September 1992, the Council’s insurer, MMI Limited, announced that it had ceased taking new business or issuing renewals and had placed a moratorium on claims payments.  On the 6 October 1992, MMI resumed the full payment of claims.  No new business was accepted however, nor existing policies renewed.



As a result of the above, a special meeting of Finance Committee was held on the 29 January 1993 and the Council’s insurance business was transferred to a number of new insurers.



The creditors committee of MMI envisages that there will be a solvent run off and therefore no clawback claims will be made against the Council.



As at 31 March 2007 £288,650 remained unpaid in respect of claims made by employees (£193,250 at 31 March 2006), no claims made by third parties or in respect of professional negligence remained unpaid at this date (at 31 March 2006 these balances were £90,000 and £49,136 respectively).  The extent to which any claims will not be settled in full cannot be assessed at the present time and no provision, therefore, has been made for these potential liabilities in the balance sheet.


b.
Manchester Airport plc



Manchester Airport plc has agreed to reimburse the Council in respect of debt charges on the loans referred to in note 5.  No provision has been made in the balance sheet to cover any potential losses on this agreement, which will operate until all the loans have matured in 2027.


c.
Modesole Ltd.



As a result of the Council receiving a distribution from the proceeds of Modesole’s sale of its shares in the Midland Hotel & Conference Centre a liability may arise, the extent of which can not yet be determined, to repay its share of a grant given in 1986 towards the refurbishment of the hotel.  



As a result of the Council receiving a distribution of proceeds from the sale of its entire shareholding in Modesole Ltd, an indemnity was given to the buyer against any future liabilities in Modesole prior to the date of the sale.  This indemnity is limited to the value of the sale proceeds received and will last until 9 August 2015, 10 years from the date of sale.


d.
IDEA Ltd.



The Council has agreed to indemnify IDEA Ltd., to a maximum amount of £220,000 plus inflation in connection with the development of a landmark building for the purpose of creating incubator units, managed workspace and serviced business space for new and small businesses.


e.
Lowry Centre Trust



Under an agreement dated 19 March 1997 the Council has agreed with the Arts Council and the Trust that it will pay to the Trust each year an amount representing the planned deficit for the year in the Trust’s revenue accounts in respect of the operation of the Lowry Centre provided that the deficit has actually been incurred.  In addition the agreement includes a commitment that the Council will guarantee to underwrite the Trust with a minimum sum of £350,000 per annum in return for outreach services which the trust will provide to schools and residents.



The agreement came into operation on the 1 April 2000 and the amount of the fixed annual contribution will be reviewed every five years beginning from the starting date but the annual contribution will not be reduced below £350,000.



The terms of the agreement are irrevocable except with the consent of the Arts Council.



The amount of the contribution was £0.677m for each of the two years 2000/01 and 2001/02.  To secure additional external funding amounting to £16.250m it has been agreed that an extra £0.250m will be paid to the Trust for each of the five years commencing in 2003/04.  This variation raises the annual contribution rate to £0.927m.  The original basic contribution of £0.677m each year is next subject to review in 2010/11 taking into account the Trust’s annual business plan.


f.
New Prospect Housing Ltd (NPHL) Pension Liability 


In addition to the Council's pension liability disclosed separately, the Council's ALMO (NPHL) carries a pension liability estimated at £4.805m as at 31 March 2007 (£8.218m as at 31 March 2006).  In a similar fashion to the Council's own liability, this deficit on the LGPS will be made good by increasing contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.  The Council has indicated its current intention that, in the event of factors causing pension liabilities to fall due earlier than planned, the Council expects that it will ensure that NPHL is in a position to meet those liabilities.

39.

Trust Funds


The Council administers funds on behalf of 13 various trusts with a total fund value of £1.115m (£1.069m at 31 March 2006).  All trust funds are excluded from the Council’s accounts.

40.
Related Businesses and Companies


The Council has an involvement with a number of companies whose assets and liabilities are not included in these accounts.  Relevant details of the companies are summarised below.


a.
New Prospect Housing Limited (NPHL)



The principal activity of the company is the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock.



The company is an ALMO (arms-length management organisation) of the Council, formed on 16 September 2002.  It is wholly-owned by the Council and is limited by guarantee.  NPHL is considered to be a subsidiary company and is treated in these accounts as a related party.



At the year ended 31 March 2007, the company had net liabilities of £4.487m (£8.107m in 2005/06).  In 2006/07, the profit before tax was  £58,000 (a loss of £455,000 in 2005/06).


Further information and details of the financial statements of NPHL may be obtained from the Company Secretary, New Prospect Housing Ltd., Turnpike House, Eccles New Road, Eccles M50 1SW.


b.
Salford University Business Enterprises Ltd. (SUBEL)


The principal activity of the company was investing in and managing businesses and property with a view to encouraging new businesses and regeneration.


The Council owned 23,500 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 37% of ordinary share capital, and 311,500 £1 non-voting preference shares.  The balance of the company was owned by the majority shareholder, Salford University.

The company had completed the main regeneration objectives of its incorporation and officially completed its wind up in June 2006.


c.
Higher Broughton Partnership Companies


The principal activity of these companies is to manage a real estate project regenerating the Higher Broughton area of the city.



The Council's 19% interests in the Higher Broughton Partnership LP and the Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd are held by 2 subsidiary companies of the Council set up for this purpose Higher Broughton Initiative 1 and Higher Broughton Initiative 2.  Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd has a board of directors of which 43% are Council representatives.



In the year 2006/07, the Council made payments including loans to the Higher Broughton Partnership Companies of £183,891 (£939,831 in 2005/06) and received payments of £23,520 (£2,212,712 in 2005/06 including a loan repayment).


d.
Chapel Wharf Ltd.



The principal activity of the company is investing and participating in the development of the area known as Chapel Wharf.



The Council owns 14,746 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 15% of share capital.



At the year end 31 March 2007, the company had net assets of £1.2m (£6.2m in 2005/06).  In 2006/07 the profit before tax was £1,770,878 and after tax £1,415,384 (2005/06 profit before tax £125,470 and after tax £93,110).



Chapel Wharf disposed of the majority of its assets during the financial year 2006/07 and following the disposal of the remainder of its assets the intention of the members is to enter voluntary liquidation and complete its winding up in early 2008.



Further information may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Nick Bird, Findley Robertson, Brook House, Manchester M2 2EE.


e.
Urban Vision Partnership Limited (UVPL)



The principal activity of the company is to provide a wide range of multi-disciplinary services to the Council which were previously performed by the Development Services Directorate.  These services include Engineering & Highways, Architectural Services, Property & Development, Planning & Building Control and Business Development & Support.



Urban Vision Partnership Limited is a joint venture arrangement created between Capita Symonds, Morrison and Salford City Council and was formed on 1 February 2005.  Salford City Council is a minority shareholder in this venture and current shareholdings are Capita Symonds 50.1%, Morrison 30% and SCC 19.9%.  UVPL is considered to be a joint venture company and is to be treated in these accounts as an associate company.  


At 31 March 2007 the company had net assets of £2.235m (£1.214m in 2006) and for 2006/07 had profits before tax of £1.171m (£1.669m in 2005/06). The Council has an agreement for the provision of services from UVPL and purchased £33.397m excluding VAT in 2006/07 (£30.132m in 2005/06).  In 2006/07 the Council received from UVPL £16.111m excluding VAT as reimbursement of salary costs for seconded staff and other costs (£15.925m in 2005/06). 



Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Urban Vision Partnership Ltd., Emerson House, Albert Street, Eccles M30 0TE.


f.
Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd.



The principal activity of the company is to bring about the successful development of land at Pier 8 in Salford Quays.



The Council holds 50 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 50% of share capital.



The company is financially dormant: no financial transactions have taken place since its inception.  It has net assets of £100.



Further information may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Customer & Support Services Directorate, Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Swinton M27 5AD.


g.
Central Salford URC Ltd.



Central Salford URC was incorporated as a private company, limited by guarantee with no share capital in August 2006.  The Council currently has 18% of the directors and is restricted by the articles of association to at all times have less than 20% of the voting rights and so not exert significant influence.



The principal activity of the company is to facilitate the regeneration of an area of Central Salford.


In the year 2006/07 the Council made payments, in the form of a grant, to Central Salford URC of £293,000 and received payments of £79,000 for financial and administrative support.


Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from Christopher Hulme, Company Secretary, Central Salford URC Ltd., Digital World Centre, 3rd Floor, No. 1 Lowry Plaza, Pier 8, Salford Quays, M50 3UB


h.
Manchester Airport Group plc (MAG)


The principal activity of the company is the operation and development of an international airport.



The Council holds 10,214,000 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 5% of share capital.



At the year ended 31 March 2007, the company had net assets of £861.1m (£793.1m at 31 March 2006).  The profit before tax was £80.9m and after tax was £67.7m (2005/06 profit before tax £87.7m, and after tax £60.7m).



A dividend of £1.25m was received in 2006/07 (£1.25m in 2005/06).



Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, c/o Manchester Professional Services Ltd., PO Box 532, Town Hall, Manchester M60 2LA.


i.
Lowry Centre Trust


The Lowry Centre Trust is a private company, limited by guarantee with no share capital.  Its principal activity is the operation of the Lowry Centre art gallery and theatre.  Two Council members and an officer sit on the Trust's board but the Council has no financial interest in its performance.



The Council paid a contribution of £0.927m to the Trust in 2006/07 under a March 1997 agreement disclosed in an earlier note.



Further information may be obtained from the Company Secretary, The Lowry, Pier 8, Salford M50 3AZ.


j.
Salford Community Leisure Limited (SCL)



The principal activity of the company is to provide a range of diverse sports and physical activities within the City, which include sports centre, swimming pools, specialist sports facilities, sports development and sports events.



The company is a not-for-profit community organisation that has been incorporated under the  Industrial and Provident Societies Act, and was formed on 1 October 2003. SCL is an independent organisation from the Council but works in partnership with the Council to develop mutual strategic aims and objectives.  It has therefore been treated in these accounts as a separate organisation.  The Council has a funding agreement in place for the provision of services from SCL and purchased £3,558,928 excluding VAT in 2006/07 (£3,317,828 in 2005/06).



Further information and details of the financial statements of SCL may be obtained from the Secretary to the Board,  Susan Leonard, Salford Community Leisure Ltd., Minerva House, Pendlebury Road, Swinton, Salford M27 4EQ.


k.
Salford Hundred Venture Ltd 



The principal activity of the company is to assist new enterprises and existing small firms in Salford - Shareholding 2 £1 shares, equivalent to 22% of issued share capital.



At 31 March 2007 the company had net assets of £591,133 (£636,094 in 2006).  The loss for the year before tax was £56,570 (profit of £58,746 in 2005/06).


In the year 2006/07 the Council made payments of £187,439 (£172,558 in 2005/06) to Salford Hundred Venture and received payments for services of £60,084 (£74,900 in 2005/06)



Further information may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Business Link House, 33-35 Winders Way, Salford M6 6BU.


l.
Manchester/Salford/Trafford Groundwork Ltd. 


Manchester/Salford/Trafford Groundwork Ltd is a private company limited by guarantee without share capital.  The Council holds 13% of the directorships and has a liability that is limited to £10.


In the year 2006/07 the Council made payments for services of £1,919,998 (£591,222 in 2005/06) and received payments of £76,478 (£1,029 in 2005/06)


m.
MaST LIFT Company Ltd


The company was formed under the NHS Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) initiative to develop and deliver health and social care estate.  Its principal activity is as a holding company for a group providing accommodation and servicing of medical centres.  Three of the LIFT developments within Salford will include space leased by the Council in relation to library, community space and one stop shop provision.



The principal shareholder is Primary Plus (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as ExcellCare Limited), a company jointly owned equally by John Laing and HBOS (Bank of Scotland), who own a 60% equity investment.  The other shareholders are health and local authorities in the Manchester area.



The Council owns 200 class B shares (equivalent to a 2.22% investment) in MaST LIFT Company Limited.  The Council has also invested in £166,961 long terms subordinated loan stock of a subsidiary, MaST LIFT Project Company  (No. 2) Limited.



No dividend was received in 2006/07 and no interest receipts are due on the subordinated debt until 2007/08.  The Council will begin making lease rental payments to the company in 2008/09 when the three buildings open.



Further information can be obtained from the Company Secretary: 
Roger Miller, 
Allington House, 



150 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5LB


Requests for further details on any of the above companies should be made to the Corporate Accountancy Section, Customer and Support Services Directorate, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton M27 5AW (telephone 0161 793 3245).

41.
Economic and Monetary Union (EMU)

On the 1 January 1999 eleven countries of the European Union formed an Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) and introduced a single currency - the euro.  The Chancellor stated on 9 June 2003 that the 5 economic tests, pre-requisites for the UK joining the euro, had not yet been satisfied.  However, he reaffirmed the government’s commitment to joining the euro when the economic conditions are correct, and the government continues to make changeover preparations.


In the longer term the introduction of the euro could have an impact on the Council in respect of matters such as the provision of economic development advice to businesses and in the procurement of goods and services.  There has been no direct impact on the Council to date.  (There were no committed costs as at 31 March 2007).

42.
Events after the Balance Sheet date


The Council has entered into an agreement signed 20 June 2007, to sponsor the BBC Philharmonic Orchestra for the next eight years at a total cost of £20m.


The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue on the 25 June 2007 by John Spink CPFA, Head of Finance.  Potential Events after the Balance Sheet have been considered up to that date.

43.
Fixed Asset Restatement Account


The account reflects in the main the surpluses or deficits from the periodic revaluations of fixed assets.  The net book value of assets disposed of is charged to the reserve.

	
	General

Fund

£000s
	HRA

£000s
	Total

£000s

	Balance brought forward
	55,643 
	460,965 
	516,608 

	Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of assets
	
	
	

	  - Net increase in the gross book value of assets
	(388)
	117,858 
	117,470 

	  - Depreciation on revalued assets
	1,994 
	15,963 
	17,957 

	
	1,606 
	133,821 
	135,427 

	
	
	
	

	Disposal of fixed assets
	
	
	

	  - Reduction in assets value
	(15,308)
	(23,788)
	(39,096)

	  - Depreciation on assets disposals
	1,360 
	44 
	1,404 

	
	(13,948)
	(23,744)
	(37,692)

	
	
	
	

	
	43,301 
	571,042 
	614,343 


44.
Capital Financing Account


The account represents principally the amounts required to be set aside from revenue resources and capital receipts for the repayment of debt.  In addition it includes amounts that have been used from revenue, capital grants and capital receipts to finance the capital programme.  The account is detailed below.

	
	General

Fund

£000s
	HRA

£000s
	Total

£000s

	Balance brought forward 01/04/06


	(49,159)


	173,463 


	124,304 

 

	Depreciation
	(18,531)
	(17,523)
	(36,054)

	Write down deferred charges
	(29,842)
	- 
	(29,842)

	Impairment
	- 
	(78)
	(78)

	Chapel Wharf loan repayment
	(109)
	- 
	(109)

	SUBEL loss
	(335)
	- 
	(335)

	
	
	
	

	Amounts used to finance capital expenditure
	
	
	

	  Capital receipts applied
	17,550 
	7,165 
	24,715 

	  Grant on deferred charges
	19,389 
	- 
	19,389 

	  Direct Revenue financing
	97 
	16,270 
	16,367 

	
	
	
	

	Revenue for provision for capital financing :
	
	
	

	  MRP
	5,970 
	- 
	5,970 

	  Voluntary revenue provision
	1,438 
	- 
	1,438 

	
	
	
	

	Grants released to match depreciation
	5,347 
	106 
	5,453 

	Grants released on disposal of assets
	67 
	424 
	491 

	
	
	
	

	Balance carried forward 31/03/07
	(48,117)
	179,827 
	131,710 


45.
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve


These are the unused proportion of capital receipts, i.e. usable receipts which have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure

	
	General

Fund

£000s
	HRA

£000s
	Total

£000s

	Receipts in hand 01/04/06
	10,743 
	141 
	10,884 

	Receipts in year
	13,774 
	23,948 
	37,722 

	
	24,517 
	24,089 
	48,606 

	Less:
	
	
	

	Pooling payments
	- 
	(16,923)
	(16,923)

	Provision for repayment of government grants
	(1,246) 
	- 
	(1,246) 

	Receipts applied in financing
	 (17,550)
	(7,165)
	 (24,715)

	
	
	
	

	Receipts in hand 31/03/07
	5,721
	1 
	5,722 


46.
Deferred capital receipts


These arise from assets sales where the consideration is deferred until some future event.  For instance, in the case of home swaps, it becomes receivable upon a subsequent resale of a property sold by the Council on which a legal charge has been placed.  In the case of council house sales, the amount represents outstanding mortgages with the Council.


In the 2005/06 accounts, these items were included within deferred credits.  The revised description and location within net worth more accurately reflects the nature of the balance.

47.
Pensions


Pension liability

The overall movements in the surplus/deficit on the pension fund are analysed below.

	
	Local Government

Pension Scheme
	Teachers Pensions

(added years element)
	Total

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Opening surplus/(deficit)
	(156,800)
	(136,500)
	(35,800)
	(33,500)
	(192,600)
	(170,000)

	Current service cost
	(23,900)
	(17,500)
	
	
	(23,900)
	(17,500)

	Employer contributions
	13,300 
	11,500 
	
	
	13,300 
	11,500

	Contributions in respect    of unfunded benefits
	2,200 
	2,100 
	2,300 
	2,300
	4,500 
	4,400

	Past service costs
	(400)
	(500)
	
	(200)
	(400)
	(700)

	Settlements/curtailments
	(200)
	(1,300)
	
	(400)
	(200)
	(1,700)

	Net return on assets
	1,800 
	(500)
	(1,700)
	(1,800)
	100 
	(2,300)

	Actuarial gains/losses
	51,000 
	(14,100)
	400 
	(2,200)
	51,400 
	(16,300)

	Closing surplus/(deficit)
	(113,000)
	(156,800)
	(34,800)
	(35,800)
	(147,800)
	(192,600)


Pension Reserve
	
	LGPS

£000s
	Teachers'

£000s
	Total

£000s

	Balance brought forward 1 April 2006
	(156,800)
	(35,800)
	(192,600)

	Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17
	(7,200)
	600 
	(6,600)

	Actuarial gains/losses
	51,000 
	400 
	51,400 

	Balance carried forward 31 March 2007
	(113,000)
	(34,800)
	(147,800)


Actuarial gains and losses

The actuarial gains and losses identified are further analysed below.  They are measured in absolute terms and as a percentage of the fund’s assets or liabilities at 31 March of the year in question.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06
	2004/05
	2003/04
	2002/03

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	
	% of fund assets / (liabilities)
	% of fund assets / (liabilities)
	% of fund assets / (liabilities)
	% of fund assets / (liabilities)
	% of fund assets / (liabilities)

	Differences between the expected and actual return on assets
	3,900

0.6%
	76,100

12.9%
	22,300

4.6%
	66,300

14.3%
	(105,500)

(28.2%)

	Differences between actuarial assumptions about liabilities and actual experience
	(400)

(0.1%)
	(900)

(0.1%)
	(12,500)

(1.9%)
	400

0.1%
	5,000

1.1%

	Changes in the demographic and financial assumptions used to estimate liabilities
	47,900

7.5%
	(91,500)

(12.2%)
	(108,400)

(16.6%)
	-

-
	-

-

	
	51,400
	(16,300)
	(98,600)
	66,700
	(100,500)


48.
Other Reserves and Balances 

	
	Balance

1/4/06

£000s
	Net Transfers in

During year

£000s
	Balance

31/3/07

£000s

	Other earmarked reserves
	
	
	

	  DSO appropriation account
	151
	531 
	682 

	  Manchester Airport Reserve
	5,702
	- 
	5,702 

	  Investment Reserve
	246
	1,007 
	1,253 

	  Barton Moss Trading
	556
	(556)
	- 

	  Risk Management Fund
	168
	96 
	264 

	  s31 Pool Budget Reserve
	-
	474 
	474 

	  Systems Development Reserve
	686
	(100)
	586 

	  Special High Schools PFI Reserve
	1,508
	(1,266)
	242 

	  Social Services Reserve
	1,410
	(532)
	878 

	  LABGI Reserve
	995
	(378)
	617 

	  Insurance Fund Reserve
	4,735
	(1,223)
	3,512 

	  PFI Capital Reserve
	1,248
	624 
	1,872 

	
	17,405
	(1,323)
	16,082 

	
	
	
	

	Collection Fund
	- 
	885 
	885 

	Equal Pay Back Pay
	- 
	(2,398)
	(2,398)

	
	17,405
	(2,836)
	14,569 

	HRA Reserves
	
	
	

	  HRA Surplus Account
	3,792
	(522)
	3,270 

	  HRA Repairs Account Reserve 
	-
	- 
	- 

	
	
	
	

	Major fund reserves
	
	
	

	  Reserves held by schools
	1,625
	(712)
	913 

	  General Fund Reserve
	10,160
	2,374 
	12,534 



Purpose of Other Reserves and Balances

The DSO Appropriation Account was established in 1981/82 to receive and distribute profits and to cover any losses made by the Council’s direct service organisations.


The Manchester Airport Reserve was established in 1986/87 as a result of the dissolution of Greater Manchester County Council and the distribution of its interest in Manchester Airport among the ten councils in Greater Manchester.  The proceeds have been reinvested in shares in Manchester Airport plc.


The Investment Reserve was set up in 2006/07 to bridge the gap between investment in a savings project and the return on that project.  It has been formed from the previous Invest to Save Fund and its balance increased.

The Barton Moss Trading Reserve was set up in 1996/97 to meet any deficits arising on the trading account and to support specific items of expenditure.  The available balance was used during 2006/07 to support expenditure within Children’s Services.

The Risk Management Fund was set up in 1998/99 to meet the costs of identifying risks and carrying out measures to reduce or eliminate risks to assets, employees and third parties.


The Systems Development Reserve was established in 2003/04 to assist in providing for the implementation of new systems under the e-Government initiative.


Special High Schools PFI Reserve was set up in 2005/06.  The funding available for the Special High Schools PFI scheme from Special Grant and Council revenue contributions will exceed the payments of unitary charge in the early years of the contract and then be less in subsequent years due to reducing grant support.  The Council has therefore created an interest bearing reserve during the year, which will be effective over the life of the contract and will ensure that the estimated unitary charge payments are provided for over the life of the contract.


The Social Services Reserve was set up in 2004/05 to meet any additional costs arising through property maintenance and organisational development.


The Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) Reserve was set up in 2005/06 from the proceeds of the grant received from the government in recognition of the increase in business activity in the city.  The reserve will be used to promote economic development activities and encourage investment in the city.


The Insurance Fund Reserve provides an additional contingency to meet any further claims, in addition to the amount provided for under long-term liabilities.


PFI Capital Reserve under the terms of the Private Finance arrangement entered into with the Eccles Special High School Company Ltd, the 3 High Schools will revert to the Authority's ownership at the end of the contract for a nominal cost in 2030.  In accordance with the 2005 SORP, the element of the annual contract payment, which is deemed to relate to the acquisition of these assets, has been accounted for as a prepayment, which will accumulate over the life of the contract.  The PFI Capital Reserve has been set up to match this prepayment provision and will equate to the difference between the fair value and the nominal amount paid for the assets on their transfer in 2030.


The Equal Pay Back Pay Account  was set up in 2006/07 as a negative reserve, matching the provision made for equal pay settlements.  This ensures that the provision has no effect on council tax until settlements are actually made.

The HRA Surplus Account was established in 1989/90 to provide a working balance for the Housing Revenue Account.


The HRA Repairs Account Reserve has been set up in the Housing Revenue Account to meet the repair, maintenance and improvement programme expenditure.



The General Fund Reserve receives surpluses from and meets deficits on the General Fund Revenue Account.  Earmarked contributions and service underspendings, have been transferred to the account during the year.

49.
Reserves held by Schools

Under the terms of the Education Act 1996, local authorities are required to delegate management responsibilities to the governing bodies of schools.  All primary, secondary and special schools are formula funded and are included in the scheme of full delegation.  Nursery schools are excluded from the scheme.


In accordance with the Council’s approved scheme for delegating budgets to schools, the amount of any budget not spent in the year is available for future use by the schools, subject to the limits agreed by DfES and prescribed in the Scheme of Delegation to schools.  The balances are not available to the Council for general use.


The balances held at 31 March are set out below.

	
	31 March 2007
	31 March 2006

	
	£000s
	£000s

	Schools managed locally

- underspendings carried forward

- overspendings carried forward
	5,119 

(4,206)
	4,972 

(3,347)

	Net underspending carried forward
	913 
	1,625 


50.
Deployment of Dedicated Schools Grant

In 2006/07 there is a significant shift in government funding, compared to 2005/06, from general Revenue Support Grant, shown at the foot of the Income & Expenditure Account, to specific Dedicated Schools Grant, included within the Education services line within Net Cost of Services in the Income & Expenditure Account.


The Council's expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Education and Skills, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG).  DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget.  The Schools Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each school.  Over and underspends on the two elements are required to be accounted for separately.


Details of the deployment of the DSG receivable for 2006/07 are set out below.


Schools budget funded by dedicated schools grant
	
	Central

Expenditure
	Individual

Schools Budget
	Total

	
	£000
	£000
	£000

	Original grant allocation to Schools Budget for the current year in the authority's budget
	12,740 
	109,901 
	122,641 

	Adjustment to the finalised Grant allocation
	0 
	(616)
	(616)

	DSG receivable for the year
	12,740 
	109,285 
	122,025 

	
	
	
	

	Actual expenditure for the year
	12,902 
	110,613 
	123,515 

	(Over)/Underspend for the year
	(162) 
	(1,328)
	(1,490)

	Planned top-up funding of ISB from Council resources
	0 
	0 
	0 

	Use of schools balances brought forward
	0  
	712  
	712  

	(Over)/Underspend from prior year
	0  
	0  
	0  

	(Over)/Underspend carried forward to 2007/08
	(162) 
	(616) 
	(778) 


51.
Collection Fund Balance

The opening balance for the Collection Fund for 2006/07 was nil.  By the end of the year, initial assumptions about collection rates had proven to be over-cautious and the balance was a £1m surplus.  On the basis that surpluses and deficits are shared with precepting authorities, the balance is accounted for as set out below.


In the Balance Sheet, the Council included the £1m deficit on a disaggregated basis as a creditor to precepting authorities of £115,000 and an £885,000 attributable surplus on the Collection Fund balance alongside the General Fund balance.



In the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, a new line has been inserted recording an £885,000 gain.

52.
Reconciliation of the loss on the Income & Expenditure Account to the Net Cash flow

The surplus on the Income & Expenditure Account includes transactions that do not result in cash flows.  The following table identifies these transactions and reconciles the surplus shown in the Income & Expenditure Account with the actual net revenue cash flows shown in the Cash Flow Statement.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Deficit per Income and Expenditure Account
	
	44,552 
	35,299 

	
	
	
	

	Non-cash transactions
	
	
	

	-  major repairs allowance
	(16,270)
	
	(15,944)

	-  premiums and discounts written down to revenue
	(4,043)
	
	(3,188)

	-  depreciation charged to services
	(19,785)
	
	(22,016)

	-  deferred charges to services
	(6,130)
	
	(6,433)

	-  pension FRS17 adjustments
	(6,600)
	
	(6,300)

	-  other non-cash movements
	(2,774)
	
	5,735 

	
	
	(55,602)
	(48,146)

	Items on an accruals basis
	
	
	

	-  increase/(reduction) in stock
	(377)
	
	58 

	-  increase/(reduction) in debtors
	(2,382)
	
	9,183 

	-  (increase)/reduction in deferred credits
	(1,039)
	
	(1,208)

	-  (increase)/reduction in creditors/provisions
	(7,946)
	
	(11,951)

	
	
	(11,744)
	(3,918)

	
	
	(22,794)
	(16,765)

	Items classified elsewhere in the cash flow
	
	
	

	- dividend income
	2,111 
	
	1,529 

	- interest received
	2,347 
	
	3,442 

	- interest paid
	(30,274)
	
	(30,364)

	
	
	(25,816)
	(25,393)

	Net cash flow from revenue activities
	
	(48,610)
	(42,158)


53.
Reconciliations of movement in Net Cash Flow and movement in Net Debt

The following tables analyses the changes in the authority's net debt in the year.

	
	As at

01/04/06
	Receipts
	Payments
	Reclass-

ification

of debt
	As at

31/03/07

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Long-term Debt
	(506,677)
	(8,000)
	45,500 
	543 
	(468,634)

	Deferred Liabilities
	(12,842)
	(1)
	2 
	462 
	(12,379)

	Short-term Debt
	(954)
	(115,800)
	66,655 
	(1,005)
	(51,104)

	Short-term investments
	49,150 
	(751,172)
	739,760 
	
	37,738 

	
	(471,323)
	(874,973)
	851,917 
	- 
	(494,379)

	Cash in hand/(overdrawn)
	2,224 
	- 
	(2,539)
	- 
	(315)

	
	(469,099)
	(874,973)
	849,378 
	-
	(494,694)



This movement can be summarised as follows:-

	Reconciliation to Net Debt
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Net debt 31 March prior year
	(469,099)
	
	(438,810)
	

	Net debt 31 March current year
	(494,694)
	
	(469,099)
	

	Change in the year
	
	(25,595)
	
	(30,289)

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Represented by :-
	
	
	
	

	(Reduction)/increase in cash
	
	(2,539)
	
	(1,509)

	Net reduction/(increase) in borrowing
	
	(11,644)
	
	(17,630)

	Increase/(reduction) in investments
	
	(11,412)
	
	(11,150)

	Change in net debt
	
	(25,595)
	
	(30,289)


54.
Other Government Grants
	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s

	
	
	

	DFES - Education Standards Fund
	17,473
	14,144

	DCLG - Supporting People
	13,439
	13,670

	DCLG - Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
	10,367
	12,006

	DCLG - Neighbourhood Renewal Fund
	9,308
	9,308

	DCLG - New Deal for Communities
	6,910
	4,957

	DFES - Surestart
	6,622
	3,172

	DFES - Schools Standards
	5,329
	4,175

	DOH - Access Systems and Capacity
	3,269
	3,496

	DWP - Benefits Administration Subsidy
	2,999
	3,138

	DCLG - Safer Stronger Communities
	2,659
	-

	DFES - Learning Skills Council
	2,431
	2,439

	HO - Asylum Seekers
	1,993
	1,903

	DFES - Childrens Fund and Childcare Grants
	1,805
	2,188

	DCLG - Private Finance Initiative
	1,796
	1,871

	DCLG - Local Public Service Agreements
	1,693
	-

	DOH - Various Drug Initiatives
	1,488
	2,333

	DOH - Preserved Rights
	1,301
	1,138

	European Community
	1,255
	1,225

	DOH - Mental Health
	1,227
	671

	DCLG - LABGI Scheme
	1,208
	995

	DOH - Carers
	1,044
	1,060

	DCLG - LAA Pump Priming
	966
	0

	DOH - Training Support
	827
	837

	DCLG - Housing Market Renewal Fund
	631
	1,720

	DFES – Teachers Pay Reform (Part of DSG 06/07)
	-
	4,046

	Other Grants
	4,953
	6,902

	
	102,993
	97,394


55.
Other operating receipts 


These include agency receipts, services to other authorities, other grants and contributions.

Housing Revenue Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2007
	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Income
	
	

	(68,454) 
	Dwelling rents (gross)
	(68,150) 
	13

	(785) 
	Non-dwelling rents (gross)
	(849) 
	

	(4,621) 
	Charges for services and facilities
	(6,729) 
	

	(11,294) 
	HRA subsidy receivable (inc. MRA)
	(10,518) 
	10

	
	
	
	

	(85,154) 
	Total income
	(86,246) 
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Expenditure
	
	

	24,493 
	Repairs and maintenance
	24,717  
	15

	23,890 
	Supervision and management
	26,434  
	15

	934 
	Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
	1,029  
	

	1,707 
	Increased provision for bad or doubtful debts
	1,151  
	

	460 
	Sums directed by the Secretary of State
	0  
	14

	17,711 
	Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
	17,349  
	7

	109 
	Debt Management Costs
	80  
	

	
	
	
	

	69,304 
	Total expenditure
	70,760 
	

	
	
	
	

	(15,850)
	Net cost of HRA services as included in the whole authority Income and expenditure Account
	(15,486)
	

	
	
	
	

	66 
	Non-Distributed costs
	146 
	8,9

	
	
	
	

	(15,784)
	Net Cost of HRA services
	(15,340)
	

	
	
	
	

	- 
	(Gains) or loss on the disposal of fixed asset
	(424)
	

	
	
	
	

	14,454 
	Interest payable and similar charges
	14,606 
	

	
	
	
	

	2,801 
	Amortisation of premiums & discounts
	2,720 
	

	
	
	
	

	5
	Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 
	(36)
	

	
	
	
	

	(185)
	Interest and investment income
	(155)
	

	
	
	
	

	1,291
	(Surplus)/deficit for year on HRA services
	1,371
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance

	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	

	
	
	
	

	1,291 
	Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
	1,371 
	

	
	
	
	

	(1,111)
	Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or (credited) to the HRA Balance for the year
	(849)
	

	180
	Decrease in the HRA Balance for the year
	522 
	

	
	
	
	

	(3,972)
	Housing Revenue Account surplus brought forward
	(3,792)
	

	
	
	
	

	(3,792)
	Housing Revenue Account surplus carried forward
	(3,270)
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Note to the Statement of Movement on the HRA balance

	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	

	
	Amounts included in the HRA Income and 

Expenditure Account but excluded from 

the movement on the HRA Balance for the year


	
	

	(1,833)
	Excess of depreciation charged to HRA services over the Major Repairs Allowance element of Housing Subsidy
	(1,254)
	3

	
	
	
	

	
	- Government Grants Deferred amortisation
	107 
	

	
	- Net gain on sale of fixed asset
	424 
	

	
	- Contribution(from)/to capital reserves
	(78)
	

	
	
	
	


	(86)
	Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17
	(48)
	11

	(1,919)
	
	(849)
	

	
	
	
	

	
	Items not included in the HRA Income and 

Expenditure Account but included in the 

movement on HRA Balance for the year 
	
	

	
	
	
	

	(248)
	Transfers to/(from) Housing Repairs Account
	- 
	

	
	
	
	

	1,056 
	Capital expenditure funded by the HRA
	- 
	

	808 
	
	0 
	

	
	
	
	

	(1,111)
	Net additional amount required by statute 

to be debited or (credited) to the 

HRA Balance for the year
	(849)
	

	
	
	
	



Notes to the Housing Revenue Account
1. Housing Stock - Numbers and Valuation

The Council was responsible for managing 25,542 dwellings during 2006/07.  The stock was made up as follows.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Houses
	13,067
	51%
	13,509
	52%

	Flats
	11,111
	44%
	11,212
	43%

	Bungalows
	1,364
	5%
	1,369
	5%

	
	25,542
	100%
	26,090
	100%



The change in stock can be summarised as follows.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Stock at 1 April
	26,090 
	26,775 

	
	
	

	Less: Sales and demolitions
	(550)
	(699)

	Add:  Acquisition
	2 
	14 

	Stock at 31 March
	25,542 
	26,090 



The value of the stock is as follows.

	
	Valuation

31 March 2007

£000s
	Valuation

31 March 2006

£000s

	Operational Assets
	
	

	  Council Dwellings
	881,104 
	774,235

	  Other land and buildings
	4,319 
	5,083

	  Infrastructure
	3,360 
	3,938

	Non-Operational Assets
	29,099 
	16,548

	Total
	917,882 
	799,804


2. Vacant Possession Value

Council dwellings are included in the balance sheet at a value based on existing use value for social housing.  This reflects a value for a property as if it were to be sold with sitting tenants, enjoying rents at less than open market value and rights including the option of ‘right to buy’.  The vacant possession value as at the 31 March 2007 was £1,846m (£1,609m as at 31 March 2006).

3. Major Repairs Reserve

Under resource accounting, authorities are required to establish and maintain a major repairs reserve.  The main credit to the reserve is an amount equivalent to the total depreciation charges for HRA dwellings.  Authorities are able to charge capital expenditure directly to the reserve.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Balance brought forward 1 April
	-
	-

	Transfer from CFA
	
	

	-  Depreciation on operational assets
	17,456 
	17,711 

	-  Depreciation on non-operational assets
	68 
	66 

	
	17,524 
	17,777 

	Transfer to HRA
	(1,254)
	(1,833)

	Capital Expenditure
	(16,270)
	(15,944)

	Balance carried forward 31 March
	-
	-


4. Housing Repairs Account Reserve

A HRA Repairs Account has been established to meet the repair, maintenance and improvement programme expenditure.  The movement on the account is as follows.




£000s


Balance brought forward 1 April 2006

- 


Add:  Net contribution in the year from HRA

24,717 


Add: Other income

1,766 


Less: Expenditure in the year

(26,483)


Balance carried forward 31 March 2007

- 

5. Capital Expenditure and Sources of Funding
	Type
	£000s
	Sources of funding
	£000s

	Dwellings
	18,377
	Major Repairs Allowance
	16,270

	Infrastructure
	279
	Supported borrowing
	329

	
	
	Capital grants
	671

	
	
	Capital receipts
	1,386

	
	
	Revenue contributions
	-

	Total
	18,656
	
	18,656


6. Summary of Capital Receipts

Under the Local Government Act 2003, local authorities are required to pay over to the Secretary of State specified amounts of any capital receipts derived from the disposal of an interest in housing land after 1 April 2004.  The specified amounts are 75% in relation to the disposal of dwellings and 50% in relation to the disposal of any other interest in housing land.

	
	Receipts
	Pooled
	Usable

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Dwellings
	23,026
	16,904
	6,122

	Land & other property
	782
	-
	782

	Mortgage repayments
	37
	28
	9

	
	
	
	

	Total
	23,845
	16,932
	6,913


7. Depreciation

The HRA is charged an annual amount for the depreciation of assets.  Details of these charges are shown below.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Depreciation
	
	

	- Council dwellings
	16,270
	15,944

	- Other operational assets
	1,186
	1,767

	
	17,456
	17,711

	
	
	

	Less
	
	

	Grants released on depreciated assets
	(107)
	-

	
	17,349
	17,711

	
	
	

	-  Depreciation non-operational assets
	68
	66

	
	17,417
	17,777



The Council has adopted a policy whereby the depreciation relating to council dwellings is equal to the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA) which reflects the cost of maintaining properties in their present condition.  The total cost of depreciation on all HRA properties is credited to the Major Repairs Reserve.  Regulations require that where the total depreciation charges are in excess of the MRA the difference is transferred to the HRA from the Major Repairs Reserve.

8. Impairment

Impairment losses of £78,000 have been occurred on Housing Revenue Account assets relating to a clear consumption of economic benefits e.g. fire damaged properties or lack of use.  This charge is included within Non-Distributed costs and reversed out to capital reserves to avoid having any impact on rent levels.

9. Non-Distributed Costs

The HRA has been charged with depreciation and impairment losses relating to non-operational assets as shown in notes 7 and 8 above.  These charges are met from a contribution from the Major Repairs Reserve and from the capital financing account so that they do not impact on rent levels.

10. Housing Subsidy

Housing subsidy is payable by the Government to the Housing Revenue Account.  The subsidy is calculated by reference to a notional account broadly comprising expenditure in respect of management and maintenance costs, capital charges income from rents and interest on receipts.  Housing Subsidy supports the difference between notional costs and income.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Rent
	(67,401)
	(63,132)

	Interest on receipts
	(11)
	(17)

	Management & maintenance allowance
	42,432 
	39,384 

	Major repairs allowance
	16,270 
	15,944 

	Charges for capital
	19,121 
	19,051 

	Rental constraint allowance
	96 
	- 

	Admissible allowance
	11 
	23 

	Sub total housing element
	10,518 
	11,253 

	Adjustment to previous year’s entitlement
	- 
	41 

	Total Housing Subsidy
	10,518 
	11,294 


11. HRA Share of Contributions from the Pension Reserve

Proper accounting practices require that the Housing Revenue Account recognises a share of the full FRS17 costs borne by the Council for defined benefit pension schemes.  These costs have been allocated in proportion to employee costs and are set out in the table below.  To ensure that the costs have no impact on the net deficit or on the level of Housing Rents, the charges are reversed out of the Housing Revenue Account below Net Operating Surplus.

	Local Government Pension Scheme
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Within net cost of services:
	
	

	
Net current service cost
	72 
	62

	
Past service costs
	8 
	5

	
Impact of settlements/curtailments
	4 
	14

	
	
	

	Within surplus/deficit for the year
	
	

	
Interest cost
	738 
	350

	
Expected return on assets in the scheme
	(774)
	(345)

	
	48 
	86  

	Impact on net operating surplus
	
	

	
	
	

	HRA share of contributions from pension reserve
	(48)
	(86) 

	
	
	

	Impact on total surplus/deficit
	- 
	-  


12.
Rent Arrears

Comparable data at 31 March was as follows.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Arrears at 31 March
	8,527
	7,467

	
	
	

	Arrears as a percentage of gross rent income
	13%
	11%

	
	
	

	Amounts written off during the year 
	126
	1,585

	
	
	

	Contribution to a provision against potential future irrecoverable arrears 
	1,151
	1,689

	
	
	

	Gross rent income - dwellings
	68,150
	68,454



A bad debts provision has been made in the accounts in respect of potentially uncollectable rent.  The value of the provision at 31 March 2007 is £5.718m (31 March 2006 £4.692m).


The movement in the year takes into account the value of write offs totalling £0.126m (£1.585m in 2005/06)

13.
Gross Rent Income

This is the total rent income due for the year after allowance is made for vacant property, etc.  An analysis of gross rents and allowances is as follows.

	
	Dwellings

£000s
	Shops

£000s
	Other

£000s
	Total

£000s

	
	
	
	
	

	Gross Rent Income before allowances
	69,280 
	600 
	249 
	70,129 

	Less: Allowances for vacant properties
	(1,130)
	
	
	(1,130)

	Gross Rent Income after allowances
	68,150 
	600 
	249 
	68,999 



During the year 1.6% of lettable properties were vacant (1.9% in 2005/06).


Average rents were £55.92 in 2006/07 (£54.93 in 2005/06).

14.
Rent Rebates

Assistance with rents is available to those on low incomes under the government’s Housing Benefit scheme which is administered by the Council.   70% of Council tenants received help with the cost of rent in 2006/07 (68% in 2005/06).  Rent rebates are included in the Housing line of the Income & Expenditure Account core statement.
15.
Related Party Transactions

The Council operates a subsidiary arms-length management organisation New Prospect Housing Ltd (NPHL) to manage and maintain its housing stock.


Included in HRA expenditure is the payment of a management fee to NPHL, as follows :

· Repairs and maintenance
£2.762m

· Supervision and management
£17.943m

16.
Housing Stock Options Review

In May 2005, Salford City Council announced the results of its Housing Stock Options Review, which involved 18 months of consultation with tenants across the city.  Based on the results of this consultation, the Council has developed an investment strategy which outlines its vision for the future of council housing in Salford.  This proposal includes the development of a local housing company, an ALMO with a focus on regeneration, a Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme and a central service provider.  This strategy would have far reaching implications for the future shape of the Housing Revenue Account.


In July 2006 the Council submitted bids to the Department for Communities and Local Government for inclusion on a transfer programme and the establishment of a regeneration ALMO.  The Council has launched its’ new ALMO Salix Homes in July 2007 with them taking over the management responsibilities for these properties from NPHL.  Also in July 2007 the Council launched the brand of the Common Services Provider – Housing Connections Partnerships.  In August 2007 the Council received a positive mandate from it’s tenants within West Salford for transfer to a Local Housing Company and work is being undertaken to register this with the Housing Corporation and launch the Company in 2008.  The management responsibility for these properties remains with NPHL until the launch of the new Company.  As part of the transfer work NPHL will have to be wound up during 2008.  Concurrently the Council is progressing the work on the PFI initiative and how this can be co-aligned with work on the BSF programme.
17.
Further Information

Each year the Council produces a booklet for tenants outlining the activities which have taken place during the course of the year.  Further details can be obtained from the Head of Housing Services, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5BY.

Collection Fund Account for the Year Ended 31 March 2007
	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	Income
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(66,262)
	Council Tax payers
	(70,006)
	
	2

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Transfers from General Fund
	
	
	

	(20,321)


	-  Council Tax benefits
	(20,895)
	
	

	(86,583)
	
	
	(90,901)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	-
	Contribution towards previous year’s

Collection Fund deficit
	-
	
	4

	
	
	
	
	

	(65,379)
	Non-domestic rate payers
	
	(73,218)
	3

	(151,962)
	
	
	(164,119)
	

	
	Expenditure
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Precepts and demands
	
	
	

	6,558
	-  GM Police
	7,052 
	
	2

	2,783
	-  GM Fire and Civil Defence
	2,955 
	
	

	73,318
	-  Salford City Council
	77,343 
	
	

	82,659
	
	
	87,350 
	

	
	Non-domestic rates
	
	
	3

	64,940
	-  Payment to national pool
	72,781 
	
	

	439
	-  Costs of collection
	437 
	
	

	65,379
	
	
	73,218 
	

	
	Adjustment to the provision for

uncollectable amounts
	
	
	

	3,924
	-  Council Tax
	
	2,551 
	2

	
	
	
	
	

	-
	(Surplus)/deficit for the year
	
	(1,000)
	4

	-
	(Surplus)/deficit as at 1 April
	
	- 
	

	-
	(Surplus)/deficit as at 31 March
	
	(1,000)
	4

	
	
	
	
	


Notes To The Collection Fund
1.
General

Each billing authority is required to maintain a separate Collection Fund, which shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to non-domestic rates, council tax and residual Community Charges and illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to preceptors and the General Fund.

2.
Council Tax

All domestic properties are placed in one of nine valuation bands.  The Government has determined that the council tax level for each of the bands is assessed as a proportion of the tax rate for a band D property.


Each year the Council must estimate the equivalent number of band D properties, after allowing for discounts, exemptions, losses on collection etc.  For 2006/07, the calculation was as follows.

	Valuation

Band
	Total No. of

Dwellings

(after discounts)
	Proportion to

Band D
	Band D

Equivalent

	
	
	
	

	A-
	86
	5/9
	48

	A 
	45,328
	6/9
	30,219

	B 
	15,805
	7/9
	12,293

	C 
	12,056
	8/9
	10,716

	D 
	5,419
	1
	5,419

	E 
	2,709
	11/9
	3,311

	F 
	1,143
	13/9
	1,651

	G 
	754
	15/9
	1,257

	H 
	54
	18/9
	108

	
	83,354
	
	65,022

	Less:  Allowance for losses on collection
	1,300

	Council Tax Base
	63,722

	
	



The actual number of chargeable dwellings was 95,733 but, after allowing for single person discounts, empty properties etc., the figure is reduced to 83,354 (81,409 in 2005/06).


Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income required for the services of the Council and the Greater Manchester Police and Fire and Civil Defence Authorities, and dividing this by the council tax base.  This gives the basic amount of council tax for a band D property: £1,370.81 in 2006/07 (£1,328.54 in 2005/06).  This is multiplied by the proportion specified for the particular band to give the individual amount due for a property.

3.
Non-Domestic Rates

The Council collects non-domestic rates for its area, based on local rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate.  This rate is fixed by Government and in 2006/07 was 43.3p in the pound (2005/06 42.2p).  A small Business Rate Relief was introduced in April 2005 and for businesses qualifying for this relief the rate applied was 42.6p (41.5p in 2005/06)


The total amount due, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid to a national pool administered by the Government.  The pool is then redistributed to local authorities on the basis of a fixed amount per head of population.


The local rateable value of non-domestic properties at 31 March 2007 was £210.4m (£212.8m at 31 March 2006).


The amount of income in the year £73.2m is significantly less than the £92.2m which is the yield from a simple multiplication of the rateable value at 1 April 2006 by the rate in the pound.  The reasons for this variation are summarised below.

	
	£m
	£m

	
	
	

	Anticipated Charges based on the rateable value at 1 April 2006
	
	92.2

	(Less)/Add:
	
	

	Net impact of changes in rateable values in the year
	(9.8)
	

	Net impact of transitional relief scheme
	(1.7)
	

	Charitable and Discretionary Relief granted
	(5.0)
	

	Reductions for empty property
	(1.8)
	

	Provision for bad debts
	(0.6)
	

	Interest on refunds of overpayments
	(0.1)
	

	
	
	(19.0)

	
	
	73.2 


4.
Collection Fund Surpluses and Deficits

Regulations require the Council to make estimates in January each year of the deficit or surplus likely to arise at the end of the financial year in respect of both Community Charge and council tax transactions.  The amounts so estimated are to be transferred into or out of the Collection Fund in the following financial year.  Any such balance relating to council tax is required to be distributed to/borne by the Council and the Greater Manchester Police and Fire and Civil Defence authorities in proportion to the value of their respective demand and precept.


In January 2006 it was estimated that at 31 March 2006 there would be a break-even position on the fund.  The Collection Fund outturn 2005/06 reflected that estimate and therefore no contributions were required in 2006/07.


The £1m surplus on the fund as at 31 March 2007 reflects the estimate made in January 2007 and associated distributions will be required in 2007/08.

Trading Accounts (Direct Service Organisations)
	2005/06
	
	
	2006/07

	£000s
	
	
	£000s

	
	
	Income
	

	(20,776) 
	
	Charges to other accounts of the Council
	(20,538)

	(7,259) 
	
	Other income
	(6,968)

	(28,035) 
	
	Total income
	(27,506)

	
	
	
	

	
	
	Expenditure
	

	13,276  
	
	Direct labour
	12,346 

	3,444  
	
	Materials
	3,175 

	793  
	
	Sub-contractors
	2,367 

	6,126  
	
	Transport and plant
	5,620 

	4,196  
	
	Overheads
	4,034 

	99  
	
	Capital charges
	81 

	2  
	
	Interest payable on stock balances
	2 

	
	
	
	

	27,936  
	
	Total expenditure
	27,625 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	(99)  
	
	(Surplus)/loss for the year
	119

	
	
	
	

	(142)  
	
	Appropriation account opening balance
	(151)

	
	
	
	

	(99)  
	
	Add: (Surplus)/loss for the year
	119

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	(241)
	
	
	(32)

	90 
	
	Appropriation (from)/to General Fund
	(650)

	(151)
	
	Closing balance
	(682)


Notes to the Trading Accounts
1.
Operations

The Local Government Act 1999 abolished all statutory requirements in respect of compulsory competitive tendering for all DSO organisations as from 2 January 2000.  The Council has decided to continue the arrangements which were in place and to produce separate trading accounts for each of the current DSO contracts, although this policy is currently under review.


The Council has the following three organisations operating seven contracts :-


Citywide operate contracts in respect of School and Welfare Catering, Other Catering and Building Cleaning.  These contracts provide all catering and internal cleaning of Council premises throughout the city.


City Landscapes is responsible for new landscaping work and grounds maintenance.


Cityclean operate the contracts for Refuse Collection, Other Cleaning and Vehicle Management and Maintenance.


The workforce of the DSOs including part-time and casual staff was 1,224 in 2006/07 (1,421 in 2005/06).

2.
FRS17

The trading accounts include adjustments in respect of FRS17 accounting treatment which is explained further in the statement of accounting policies.  Excluding this accounting adjustment the DSOs made a surplus of £562,000. (£501,000 in 2005/06).

3.
Financial Performance

The turnover, expenditure and surplus/deficit for each category of work performed by the DSOs is detailed in the table below.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	Turnover
	Expenditure
	Surplus/

(Deficit)
	Turnover
	Expenditure
	Surplus/

(Deficit)

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other Cleaning
	3,206
	3,198
	8 
	3,039
	3,059
	(20)

	School & Welfare

Catering
	6,564
	6,661
	(97)
	6,605
	6,459
	146 

	Other Catering
	1,016
	974
	42 
	940
	867
	73 

	Refuse Collection
	3,729
	4,018
	(289)
	4,018
	4,054
	(36)

	Building Cleaning
	2,968
	3,009
	(41)
	2,818
	2,815
	3 

	Grounds Maintenance
	5,874
	5,807
	67 
	5,738
	5,814
	(76)

	Vehicle Management & Maintenance
	4,149
	3,958
	191 
	4,876
	4,867
	9 

	Total
	27,506
	27,625
	(119)
	28,034
	27,935
	99 



The amount of turnover equates to the total income received including increases in work in progress and decreases in provision for future losses.


Further details relating to the DSOs’ operations and copies of the full revenue accounts may be obtained by contacting the Accountancy Section, Customer and Support Services Directorate, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton M27 5AW, telephone 0161 793 3245, email council.finances@salford.gov.uk 

Salford City Council Group Accounts
The Salford City Council Group of Companies 

The following pages contain the consolidated accounts of the Salford City Council group of companies, including its share of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for the financial year ended 31 March 2007.

Group undertakings can be of several types, and the accounting treatment for each is different.  Each entity in which the Council has an interest has therefore been assessed to determine which category it falls under.

Subsidiaries are where the Council exercises control.  New Prospect Housing Ltd., Higher Broughton Initiative 1 and Higher Broughton Initiative 2 are classified as subsidiaries of the Council.

Associates are where the Council exercises significant influence.  Chapel Wharf Ltd, Higher Broughton Partnership LP, Salford Hundred Venture Ltd. and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd are classified as associates.

Joint Ventures are where the Council exercises joint control with other entities.  Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd and Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd are classified as joint ventures of the Council.

Where the Council has an interest in an entity but this interest is insufficient for it to be considered one of the above types of group companies, it is treated as a simple investment.  The Council holds several such investments, disclosed in the related party notes to the Balance Sheet in the single entity accounts.

No group relationship exists where the body delivering the service is not an entity in its own right, for example Section 31 Pooled Budgets or where a partnership does not currently have a legal status, or where the Council has no interest in an entity, for example the vast majority of companies with which the Council trades.

Subsidiaries

New Prospect Housing Ltd (NPHL)

New Prospect Housing Ltd is wholly owned by the Council and is limited by guarantee.  The company is an ALMO (arms-length management organisation) of the Council, formed on 16 September 2002.  The company's principal activities are to manage and maintain the housing stock of the Council.

The Parent Board of NPHL comprises five tenant representatives, five Council nominees and five independents.  NPHL has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as a subsidiary company.

NPHL has been incorporated in the accounts as a continuing activity.  However, it should be noted that a positive tenant ballot took place in July 2007 and the Council's housing stock transfer programme will now go ahead.  As part of this process NPHL will be wound up and cease to trade with effect from 31 March 2008.

Further information and details of the financial statements of NPHL may be obtained from the Company Secretary: New Prospect Housing Ltd., Turnpike House, Eccles New Road, Eccles M50 1SW.

Higher Broughton Initiative 1 & 2 (HBI1 and HBI2)

The Higher Broughton Initiative companies were set up in 2004 to represent the Council's involvement in a joint venture project to regenerate the Higher Broughton area of the city.

The Council holds 100% of the shares and has complete control of the board of directors for both companies.

For the year 2006/07 both HBI companies were financially dormant with net assets of £1 per company.  HBI1 and HBI2 have been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as subsidiaries.

Further information about HBI1 and HBI2 may be obtained from the Company Secretary : Ian Sheard, Customer & Support Services Directorate, Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Swinton M27 5AD.

Associates

Chapel Wharf Ltd

The principal activities of Chapel Wharf Ltd. have been investing and participating in the development of the area known as Chapel Wharf, Salford.  The Council agreed to indemnify Chapel Wharf Ltd to a maximum of £345,000 plus inflation, in the event of the ODPM exercising a right of pre-emption in respect of land sold by the ODPM to Chapel Wharf Ltd.

The Council owns 14,746 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 15% share capital.  Chapel Wharf Ltd has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as an associate. Chapel Wharf's accounts have been adjusted to bring their fixed asset valuation policy in line with the Council's.

Chapel Wharf has been incorporated as a continuing activity.  However, on 9 February 2007, Chapel Wharf Ltd completed the sale of the majority of its interest in the freehold property at Chapel Wharf.  The remainder of its interest was sold in May 2007 and the intention of the members is that once matters such as the corporation tax liability have been finalised the company will enter voluntary liquidation and be wound up in early 2008.

Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, c/o Finlay Robertson, Brook House, 77 Fountain Street, Manchester M2 2EE.

Higher Broughton Partnership LP
Higher Broughton Partnership LP is a Joint Venture Limited Partnership whose objective is to regenerate an area of the city of Salford.

The Council has a 19% stake in the partnership via its subsidiary HBI1.

Higher Broughton Partnership has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as an associate.  As the partnership's financial year runs from 1 January to 31 December interim accounts have been prepared for consolidation, using management accounting information for the periods January to March.  

Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Higher Broughton Partnership LP, 1 Victoria Square, Birmingham B1 1BD.

Salford Hundred Venture Ltd

The principal activity of the company is to provide aid towards the creation and promotion of small businesses in the Salford area.

The Council has a 22% stake in the company and two of the six directors are Council members.

Salford Hundred Venture Ltd has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as an associate.

Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Salford Hundred Venture Ltd, Business Link House, 33-35 Winders Way, Off Frederick Road, Salford M6 6BU

Urban Vision Partnership Ltd

On 19 January 2005, Salford City Council approved the creation of Urban Vision Partnership Ltd, a new joint venture to deliver most of the services previously provided by its Development Services Directorate.

Urban Vision is a multi disciplinary Joint Venture Company which provides the full range of professional services in connection with the built environment and has the capacity and capability to deliver a wide range of professional development regeneration consultancy services.

The Council owns 199 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 19.9% of share capital.  One of the seven directors on the board represents the Council.  The Council also has certain powers of veto over the operation of Urban Vision.

Urban Vision Partnership Ltd has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as an associate.  As Urban Vision's financial year runs from 1 January to 31 December interim accounts have been produced and consolidated using management accounts for the periods January to March.

Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Urban Vision Partnership Ltd., Emerson House, Albert Street, Eccles, Manchester M30 0TE.

Joint Ventures 
Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd
The principal activity of the company is to manage the business of the Higher Broughton Partnership LP.

The Council owns 19% of the shares in Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd through its subsidiary HBI2.  Three of the seven directors on the board represent the Council.

Higher Broughton (GP) has incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as a joint venture.  The company's financial year runs from 1 January to 31 December, but to date all in-year transactions of the project go through the Limited Partnership accounts, so the accounts for this company have not changed between 31 December 2006 and 31 March 2007 and the published accounts have been used in the consolidation.

Further information and details of financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary, Higher Broughton (GP) Ltd., 35 St. Paul's Square, Birmingham, B3 1QX.

Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd

Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd’s principal activities are to bring about the successful development of land at Pier 8 in Salford Quays.  

The Council holds 50 £1 ordinary shares, equivalent to 50% of share capital.  The company is financially dormant and has net assets of £100.  Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd has been incorporated into the group accounts of the Council as a joint venture.

Further information about Salford Bovis Partnership Ltd may be obtained from the Company Secretary : Customer & Support Services Directorate, Salford City Council, Civic Centre, Swinton M27 5AD.

Authority's Share in its Subsidiaries and Associates 
The following table identifies the authority's aggregate share in its subsidiaries and associates.

	
	Subsidiaries

£000s
	Associates

£000s

	Turnover

Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Liabilities due within one year 

Liabilities due after one year
	32,197 

69 

4,334 

(4,286)

(4,805)
	9,240 

98 

6,083 

(5,500)

- 


Group Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended 31 March 2007

	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	2006/07
	2006/07
	Notes

	
	
	Gross

Expenditure
	Income
	Net

Expenditure
	

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s
	

	2,666 
	 Central Services to the public
	28,995 
	(25,665)
	3,330 
	

	317 
	 Court & Probation Services
	339 
	(27)
	312 
	

	41,649 
	 Cultural, environmental & planning services
	88,969 
	(40,790)
	48,179 
	

	130,512 
	 Education Services
	190,489 
	(169,059)
	21,430 
	

	30,284 
	 Highways, roads and transport services
	38,188 
	(7,103)
	31,085 
	

	12,330 
	 Housing services
	95,514 
	(88,492)
	7,022 
	

	77,091 
	 Social services
	143,468 
	(60,895)
	82,573 
	

	5,757 
	 Corporate & democratic core
	6,556 
	(686)
	5,870 
	

	2,954 
	 Non-distributed costs
	1,063 
	(831)
	232 
	1

	- 
	 Exceptional items
	6,405 
	- 
	6,405 
	

	(15,452)
	 Housing revenue account
	80,374 
	(95,169)
	(14,795)
	2

	
	
	680,360 
	(488,717)
	191,643 
	

	(334)
	 Share of the operating results of associates
	- 
	- 
	(716)
	3

	
	 Share of the operating results of joint ventures
	
	
	- 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	287,774 
	 Net Cost of Services
	
	
	190,927 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	- 
	 (Gains) or losses on disposal of assets not  included within individual services
	
	
	(491)
	4

	(25)
	 Share of associates profits or losses on disposal  of fixed assets
	
	
	- 
	

	156 
	 Trading account (surpluses) and deficits
	
	
	686 
	5,6

	33,552 
	 Interest Payable
	
	
	33,175 
	

	60 
	 Share of interest payable by associates and joint  ventures
	
	
	162 
	7

	14,729 
	 Contribution of housing capital receipts to  government pool
	
	
	16,923 
	

	(1,529)
	 Dividend Income
	
	
	(1,250)
	

	(714)
	 Investment (gains)/losses
	
	
	396 
	

	(3,513)
	 Interest & investment income
	
	
	(3,135)
	8

	(10)
	 Share of interest and investment income of  associates and joint ventures
	
	
	(25)
	9

	2,123 
	 Pensions interest cost and expected return on  pensions assets
	
	
	(399)
	10

	16 
	 Taxation of group entities
	
	
	18 
	11

	114 
	 Share of taxation of associates
	
	
	68 
	12

	332,733 
	 Net Operating Expenditure
	
	
	237,055 
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(73,318)
	 Demand on Collection Fund
	
	
	(77,343)
	

	(149,230)
	 Revenue Support Grant
	
	
	(18,097)
	

	(72,157)
	 Distribution from NNDR pool
	
	
	(93,750)
	

	(1,871)
	 PFI support grant
	
	
	(1,796)
	

	(995)
	 LABGI scheme grant
	
	
	(1,207)
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	35,162 
	 (Surplus)/deficit for the year
	
	
	44,862 
	


Reconciliation of the Single Entity Deficit to the Group Deficit for the year ended 31 March 2007
	2005/06

£000s
	
	2006/07

£000s
	Notes

	34,886
	(Surplus)/deficit on the Authority Income and Expenditure
	44,552 
	

	 
	Less:  Dividend income from the group entities
	861 
	6

	34,886
	(Surplus)/deficit on the Group Income and Expenditure Account attributable to the Authority
	45,413 
	

	
	
	
	

	471 
	(Surplus)/deficit attributable to subsidiaries
	(40)
	13

	(195)
	(Surplus)/deficit attributable to associates
	(511)
	14

	- 
	(Surplus)/deficit attributable to joint ventures
	- 
	

	35,162 
	(Surplus)/deficit for the year on the Group Income and Expenditure Account
	44,862 
	


Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses for the year ended 31 March 2007
	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	35,162 
	Net (Surplus)/deficit on the Group Income & Expenditure account
	
	44,862
	

	
	Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of fixed assets
	
	
	

	(91,037)
	  On single entity statements
	(135,467)
	
	

	- 
	  Attributable to associates
	(266)
	
	15

	
	
	
	(135,733)
	

	- 
	UK corporation tax on realised gain on revalued property
	
	156 
	16

	
	Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities
	
	
	

	16,300 
	  On single entity statements
	(51,400)
	
	

	1,759 
	  Attributable to subsidiaries
	(3,378)
	
	17

	18,059 
	
	
	(54,778)
	

	
	Any other (gains)/losses
	
	
	

	- 
	  Collection fund
	
	(885)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(37,816)
	Total Group recognised (gains)/losses for the year
	
	(146,378)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	- 
	  Dividend payment by associate
	
	24 
	18

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(37,816)
	Total movement in Group Reserve for year
	
	(146,354)
	


Group Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2007

	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	
	
	
	

	401 
	Intangible assets
	
	301
	19

	
	Tangible fixed assets
	
	
	

	
	Operational Assets
	
	
	

	774,235 
	    Council Dwellings
	881,104 
	
	

	255,881 
	    Other land and buildings
	248,617 
	
	

	9,147 
	    Vehicles, plant & equipment
	9,026 
	
	20

	60,431 
	    Infrastructure assets
	61,220 
	
	

	1 
	    Community assets
	1 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Non-operational Assets
	
	
	

	38,889 
	     Investment properties
	46,840 
	
	

	45,120 
	     Assets under construction
	20,998 
	
	

	4,836 
	     Surplus assets held for disposal
	70,036 
	
	

	1,188,941 
	
	
	1,337,842
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Long-term investments
	
	
	

	1,177 
	    Share in net assets of associates
	
	913
	21

	20,550 
	    Other long-term investments
	
	20,382
	22

	1,617 
	    Stock Discount
	
	1,499
	

	33,591 
	    Debt Rescheduling premiums
	
	30,136
	

	2,580 
	    Deferred consideration
	
	6,723
	

	13,426 
	    Long-term debtors
	
	15,169
	

	1,261,882 
	Total long-term assets
	
	1,412,965
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current assets
	
	
	23

	1,184 
	    Stock, WIP and stores
	827 
	
	

	60,890 
	    Debtors and prepayments
	73,797 
	
	

	49,150 
	    Short-term investments
	37,738 
	
	

	12,449 
	    Cash
	11,906 
	
	

	123,673
	
	124,268 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Current liabilities
	
	
	24

	(954)
	    Borrowing repayable within one year
	(51,103)
	
	

	(72,983)
	    Creditors & receipts in advance
	(75,543)
	
	

	(2,154)
	    Provision
	(6,333)
	
	

	(9,140)
	    Cash overdrawn
	(10,720)
	
	

	(85,231) 
	
	(143,699)
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	38,442 
	Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)
	
	(19,431) 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	1,300,324 
	Total Assets less Current Liabilities
	
	1,393,534
	

	 
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Group Balance Sheet Contd…

	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	Long-term liabilities
	
	
	

	(506,677)
	    Borrowing repayable within a period in excess of 12     months
	(468,634)
	
	

	(15,555)
	    Deferred liabilities
	(16,131)
	
	

	(75,699)
	    Government grants deferred
	(106,741)
	
	

	(1,363)
	    Debt rescheduling discounts
	(1,951)
	
	

	 
	    Provision for liabilities and charges
	 
	
	

	(1,471)
	      Lowry receipt in advance
	(1,418)
	
	

	(10,910)
	      Insurance fund
	(11,866)
	
	

	(200,818)
	    Liabilities related to defined benefit pension scheme
	(152,605)
	
	25

	(812,493)
	
	
	(759,346)
	

	487,831 
	Net Assets
	
	634,188 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financed by:
	
	
	

	516,608 
	   Fixed asset restatement account
	
	614,343 
	

	124,304 
	   Capital financing account
	
	131,170 
	

	10,884 
	   Usable Capital Receipts Reserve
	
	5,722 
	

	2,598 
	   Deferred capital receipts
	
	2,717 
	

	3,792 
	   Housing revenue account
	
	3,270 
	

	(192,600)
	   Pensions reserves
	
	(147,800)
	

	9,298 
	   Other reserves
	
	9,880 
	26

	375 
	   Group revaluation reserves
	
	0 
	27

	787 
	   Group profit and loss and other reserves
	
	898 
	28

	11,785 
	   General Fund Reserve
	
	13,448 
	

	487,831 
	Total Group balances and reserves
	
	634,188 
	

	
	
	
	
	


Group Cash Flow Statement
	2005/06
	
	2006/07
	Notes

	£000s
	
	£000s
	£000s
	

	
	
	
	
	

	(42,194)
	Net cash inflow from revenue activities
	
	(48,985)
	29,31,30

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Dividends from joint ventures and associates
	
	
	

	-  
	Dividends received
	
	(861)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Returns on investments and Servicing of finance
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows:
	
	
	

	30,372  
	   Interest paid
	30,436 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash inflows:
	
	
	

	(3,721)
	   Interest received
	(2,428)
	
	

	(1,529)
	   Dividend income
	(1,250)
	
	

	25,129 
	
	
	26,758 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	15 
	Taxation
	
	18 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital activities
	
	
	

	
	Cash outflows:
	
	
	

	62,564
	   Purchase of fixed assets
	81,396 
	
	

	
	   Purchase of long-term investment
	805 
	
	

	39,891
	   Other capital cash payments
	36,089 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash inflows:
	
	
	

	(22,595)
	   Sale of fixed assets
	(26,753)
	
	

	(38,124)
	   Capital grants received
	(41,694)
	
	

	(3,732)
	   Other capital cash receipts
	(1,594)
	
	

	(715)
	   Sale of long-term investments
	- 
	
	

	37,289 
	
	
	48,249 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	20,232
	Net cash inflow/outflow before financing
	
	25,179 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Management of Liquid Resources
	
	
	

	(1,150)
	Net increase/(reduction) in short-term deposits
	(11,412)
	
	

	- 
	Net increase/(reduction) in other liquid resources
	- 
	
	

	(1,150) 
	
	
	(11,412)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Financing
	
	
	

	
	Cash Outflows:
	
	
	

	5,874 
	   Repayments of amounts borrowed
	112,157 
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash inflows:
	
	
	

	(22,547)
	   New long-term loans
	(6,996)
	
	

	(957)
	   New short-term loans
	(116,805)
	
	

	(17,630) 
	
	
	(11,644)
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	1,452  
	Net (increase)/reduction in cash

	
	2,123 
	

	
	
	
	
	


Notes to Group Accounts
1.
Non-distributed costs

The past service cost including an adjustment due to a change in the estimation of the number of people electing to take additional tax free cash in relation to subsidiary NPHL's pension scheme exchange for part of their pension is included in this line.

2.
Housing revenue account

The operating expenditure and income of the subsidiary NPHL including FRS17 current service pension cost, has been included within the Housing Revenue Account.


Intragroup transactions between the Council and NPHL have been removed from the income and expenditure figures of both accounts.  NPHL's adjusted income is £11.116m (£13.050 in 2005/06) and adjusted expenditure is £30.800m (£31.975 in 2005/06)

3.
Share of the operating results of associates

This includes the percentage share of operating results for the associate companies: Chapel Wharf Ltd - Loss of £12,000 (£5,000 in 2005/06); Higher Broughton Partnership LP - Profit of £512,000 (loss of £3,000 in 2005/06); Salford Hundred Venture Ltd – Loss of £17,000 (profit of £9,000 in 2005/06) and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd. - Profit of £233,000 (£333,000 in 2005/06)

4.
Gains or losses on disposal of assets

The gain included in the 2005/06 statements has been reduced to zero due to the decision to revalue assets at disposal and hence only recognise gains and losses where disposal proceeds differ significantly from this market value.

5.
Trading account surpluses and deficits

The trading expenditure figures of NPHL in relation to their operating leases are incorporated in this line.  

6.
Dividends received from associates


Dividends received by the Council from its associate Chapel Wharf have been removed from trading account surpluses and deficits on consolidation.

7.
Share of interest payable by associates

This figure represents the Council's share of the interest payable by its associates - Chapel Wharf Ltd £7,000 (£8,000 in 2005/06) and Higher Broughton Partnership LP.  £155,000 (£52,000 in 2005/06)

8.
Interest and investment income

Interest and investment income of the subsidiary NPHL has been incorporated - £81,000 (£71,000 in 2005/06)

9.
Share of interest and investment income receivable by associates

This figure represents the Council's share of the interest receivable by its associate Chapel Wharf Ltd. £19,000 (£6,000 in 2005/06), Higher Broughton Partnership LP £1,000 and Salford Hundred Venture Ltd £5,000 (£4,000 in 2005/06)
10.
Defined benefit pension scheme

NPHL operates the same Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for its employees as that operated by Salford City Council.  


FRS17 figures for NPHL are included in the Group Income and Expenditure Account as set out below, based on a valuation of NPHL's portion of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund LGPS as at 31 March 2006 by the fund's actuary, Hymans Robertson.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s

	
	
	

	Within net cost of services:

HRA: current service cost
	2,607 
	2,016 

	
	
	

	Central Services:
past service cost
	105  
	52 

	

Impact of settlements and curtailments
	-  
	- 

	
	
	

	Gain on commutation
	(831) 
	

	Within net operating expenditure:
	
	

	
interest cost
	2,625 
	2,253 

	
expected return on assets in the scheme
	(2,924)
	(2,430)

	Within amounts met from government grants and local taxes:
	
	

	
Movement on pension reserve
	35
	(556)

	Net effect
	1,617 
	1,335 

	
	
	

	Actual amount of employer's contributions payable to scheme
	1,617 
	1,335 


11.
Taxation of group entities

This figure represents the Council's share of the Corporation Tax due by its subsidiary, NPHL.

12.
Share of taxation of associates

This figure represents the Council's share of the Corporation Tax due by its associates - Chapel Wharf Ltd £1,000 (£6,000 in 2005/06) and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd - £29,000 (£105,000 in 2005/06), and the tax relief due to its associate – Salford Hundred Venture Ltd £2,000 (Tax due of £3,000 in 2005/06). along with an estimation of the tax liability in relation to the Council's share of the profits made by Higher Broughton Partnership LP.  The ultimate liability in relation to the Higher Broughton Partnership may prove to be less than this estimate due to a preferential profit share agreement but, as the effects of this cannot yet be confirmed, no reduction has been included on the basis of prudence.

13.
(Surplus)/deficit attributable to subsidiaries

This figure represents the amount of the total Group deficit attributable to the Council's subsidiary company, NPHL a surplus of £40,000 (a deficit of £471,000 in 2005/06).

14.
(Surplus)/deficit attributable to associates

This figure represents the amount of the total Group deficit attributable to the Council's associate companies:  Chapel Wharf Ltd - surplus of £26,000 (£13,000 in 2005/06); Higher Broughton Partnership LP - surplus of £292,000(deficit of £55,000 in 2005/06); Salford Hundred Venture Ltd – deficit of £10,000 (surplus of £10,000 in 2005/06) and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd. - surplus of £203,000 (£227,000 in 2005/06).

15.
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets attributable to associates

This reflects the revaluation on disposal of the assets of Chapel Wharf in line with the Council's accounting policies.

16.
UK corporation tax on realised gain on revalued property

This represents the corporate tax liability of the associate Chapel Wharf arising from the sale of properties that had previously been revalued.

17.
Actuarial gains/(losses) on pension fund assets and liabilities attributable to subsidiaries

This figure represents the amount of the actuarial gain for the year attributable to the Council's subsidiary, NPHL £3.378m (a loss of £1.759m in 2005/06).

18.
Dividend payment by associate

This is included as a memorandum item to complete the reconciliation between the movement in the group balances and reserves with the net deficit on the group income and expenditure account.  The figure represents the difference between the Council's net share of the dividend paid out by its associate Chapel Wharf and the dividend received by the Council.

19.
Intangible assets

No goodwill arose in respect of the subsidiaries as the authority set up the companies and retained ownership of the fixed assets.

20.
Vehicles, plants and equipment

This figure includes the fixed assets of the subsidiary entity NPHL £69,000 (£68,000 2005/06)

21.
Share in net assets of associates

This figure represents the Council's share of the net assets or liabilities of its associate companies.  Chapel Wharf Ltd - net assets of £179,000 (£929,000 in 2005/06), Higher Broughton Partnership LP - net assets of £159,000 (net liabilities of £133,000 in 2005/06) Salford Hundred Venture Ltd net assets of £130,000 (£140,000 in 2005/06) and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd. - net assets of £445,000 (£242,000 in 2005/06).

22.
Other long-term investments


Investments figure is the figure in the Salford single entity accounts adjusted to exclude amounts invested in associates and joint ventures.

23.
Current assets

The current assets in this figure have incorporated the assets of the subsidiary NPHL £2.145m (£1.597m 2005/06), and intragroup debtors have been removed from the Council's and NPHL's figures.

24.
Current liabilities

The current liabilities in this figure have incorporated the liabilities of the subsidiary NPHL £2.195m (£2.515m in 2005/06) and intragroup creditors have been removed from both the Council's and NPHL's figures.

25.
Pensions scheme liability

The present value of subsidiary NPHL's net pension liability in relation to its share of the GMPF LGPS is included.  It comprises:

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Estimated assets
	48,871 
	44,106 

	Present value of scheme liabilities
	(53,676)
	(52,324)

	Net liability
	(4,805)
	(8,218)



The movement on subsidiary NPHL's net pension liability is set out below.

	
	2006/07

£000s
	2005/06

£000s

	Opening surplus/(deficit)
	(8,218)
	(5,903)

	Current service cost
	(2,607)
	(2,016)

	Employer contributions
	1,617 
	1,335 

	Past service costs
	(105)
	(52)

	Impact of settlements and curtailments
	- 
	- 

	Net return on assets
	299 
	177

	Gain on commutation
	831 
	- 

	Actuarial gains/(losses)
	3,378 
	(1,759)

	Closing surplus/(deficit)
	(4,805)
	(8,218)



The actuarial gains and losses are further analysed below, expressed as absolute figures and as a percentage of total assets or liabilities.

	
	2006/07

£000s

% of fund

assets/ (liabilities)
	2005/06

£000s

% of fund

assets/ (liabilities)
	2004/05

£000s

% of fund

assets/ (liabilities)
	2003/04

£000s

% of fund

assets/ (liabilities)
	2002/03

£000s

% of fund

assets/ (liabilities)

	Differences between the expected and actual return on assets
	297

0.6%
	5,579

12.6%
	1,575

4.5%
	4,483

14.1%
	(1,189)

(5.1%)

	Differences between actuarial assumptions about liabilities and actual experience
	54

0.1%
	36

0.1%
	(2,306)

(5.7%)
	1,310

4.6%
	277

1.1%

	Changes in the demographic and financial assumptions used to estimate liabilities
	3,858

7.2%
	(7,374)

(14.1%)
	(8,288)

(20.3%)
	-

-
	-

-

	
	4,209
	(1,759)
	(9,019)
	5,793
	(912)


26.
Other reserves

Other reserves includes the accumulated loss incorporated from the subsidiary NPHL of £4.689m (£8.177m in 2005/06)

27.
Group revaluation reserve

This line represented the Council's share of the revaluation reserve of its associate, Chapel Wharf Ltd. which was reduced to zero in 2006/07 when the revaluations were realised on the sale of the assets.

28.
Group Profit and Loss and Other Reserves

The figure includes the Council's share of the accumulated profits and losses made by the associated companies Chapel Wharf Ltd, Higher Broughton Partnership LP, Salford Hundred Venture Ltd and Urban Vision Partnership Ltd., £845,000 in aggregate (£734,000 in 2005/06)


It also includes the Council's share of Chapel Wharf Ltd's Capital Redemption Reserve - £53,000

29.
Cash flow statement


The Group Cash Flow Statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with parties outside the group.

30.
Revenue activities

The surplus on the Group Income and Expenditure Account includes transactions that do not result in cash flows.  The following table identifies these transactions and reconciles the surplus shown on the Group Income and Expenditure Account with the actual net revenue cash flows shown in the Group Cash statement.

	
	2006/07
	2005/06

	
	£000s
	£000s
	£000s

	Deficit as per Group Income and Expenditure Account
	
	44,862 
	35,585

	
	
	
	

	Exclusion contributions of group entities
	551 
	
	(286)

	Contribution from subsidiary
	322 
	
	703 

	
	
	873
	

	
	
	
	

	Dividend Income
	1,250 
	
	1,529 

	Interest Paid
	2,347 
	
	3,442 

	Interest Received
	(30,274)
	
	(30,364)

	
	
	(26,677)
	(25,393)

	Non-Cash Transactions
	
	
	

	  - major repairs allowance
	(16,270)
	
	(15,944)

	  - premiums and discounts written down to revenue
	(4,043)
	
	(3,188)

	  - depreciation
	(19,806)
	
	(22,031)

	  - deferred charges to services
	(6,130)
	
	(6,433)

	  - pensions adjustments
	(6,864)
	
	(7,033)

	  - other non-cash movements
	(2,774)
	
	5,735 

	
	
	(55,887)
	(48,894)

	Items on an Accruals Basis
	
	
	

	  - increase/(reduction) in stock
	(357)
	
	38 

	  - increase/(reduction) in revenue debtors
	(2,304)
	
	8,296 

	  - increase/(reduction) in revenue deferred credits
	(1,039)
	
	(1,208)

	  - (increase)/reduction in revenue creditors
	(8,456)
	
	(11,035)

	
	
	(12,156)
	(3,909)

	
	
	
	

	Net cash flow from revenue activities
	
	(48,985)
	(42,194)

	
	
	
	


31.
Prior year adjustments - NPHL


An adjustment to NPHL's operating costs of £44,000 in their 2005/06 accounts during their audit has altered the Housing Revenue Account expenditure, the balance of other reserves and the net cash flow from revenue activities in the group accounts 2005/06 comparative figures.

Statement on Internal Control

1.
Scope of Responsibility

Salford City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.


In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, which facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. This also encompasses the partnership relationships with other entities where significant activities are undertaken through the partnership.  


2.
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.


The system of internal control has been in place at Salford City Council for the year ended 31st March 2007 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

3.
The Internal Control Environment


The Council’s control environment encompasses the strategies, policies, plans, procedures, structures, processes, attitudes, behaviour and actions required to deliver good governance for the people of Salford.  The key elements of good governance arrangements in Salford City Council are:

3.1 
Establishing and Monitoring the Achievement of the Council's Objectives


The Council’s strategic objectives have been identified as Pledges, each underpinned by a number of specific sub-pledges. These have been aligned to establish a clear link between Government priorities, the priorities for the Council as identified with its partners, involvement of the local community, and the work of the Council.


All directorates have their own Service Plan and are developing balanced scorecards that contain the key actions and performance targets to deliver the strategic objectives.


The Council has an approved Risk Management Strategy that enables it to effectively assist the achievement of its objectives, alongside national and local performance indicators. These performance indicators are linked to the Council’s Pledges and are monitored at directorate, central, Strategic Director and Member level, on a frequent basis.


An annual report on the achievement of the Council’s objectives is included in the Best Value Performance Plan. This Plan is legally required to be produced by the Council on an annual basis, setting out performance targets for the year and reporting on the previous year’s performance against these targets.

3.2 
The Facilitation of Policy and Decision-Making


The Council has agreed a Constitution that sets out how it operates, how decisions are made, and the procedures that are followed to ensure that these are efficient, proportionate, transparent, and accountable.  



There is a scheme of delegation that clearly sets out the levels at which decisions can be made.


Decisions taken under delegated powers are recorded electronically and are reported on a regular basis to the relevant Scrutiny Committee.  Meetings of these committees are forward planned, publicised and open to the public.


The Forward Plan contains the key decisions that the Council proposes to make.  The Forward Plan is published every month and covers the four months’ period commencing on the first day of each month. The Forward Plan is available for public inspection 14 days before the beginning of each month.

3.3
Ensuring Compliance with Established Policies, Procedures, Laws, and Regulations


Strategic Directors are responsible for ensuring that they establish and maintain effective systems of internal control, complying with legislation, the Council’s  Constitution, Standing Orders, and Financial Regulations. This includes responding to recommendations by Inspectorates.


The respective roles of the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer ensure legality, financial prudence, and transparency in transactions.


Members have, in accordance with the Local Government Act 2000, adopted the National Code of Conduct. Employees are governed by a local code of conduct. There is a Members and Officers relationship protocol, which represents best practice.


A strong ethical and performance framework is in place to enable officers and Members of the Council to operate effectively in their respective roles, which allows the pursuit of excellence in service delivery. The Council has formalised an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy, which provides measures to enable confidential public and officer concerns to be raised with the Council. The Council has established an Investigations Panel, whose primary role is to review and monitor progress in the investigation of cases of misappropriation and impropriety, and to ensure that such matters are managed with due regard to the Council's policies and procedures. In addition, a formal complaints policy exists to deal with other matters of public concern regarding the services provided by the Council.


The Council also places reliance on external assurance providers, such as the Audit Commission, OFSTED, and CSCI, and any recommendations arising are acted upon and monitored through the scrutiny process.  The Council has a public complaints procedure that allows the Local Government Ombudsman to investigate and report its findings. This ensures that lessons can be learned to prevent repeated occurrences.


A Corporate Governance and Risk Management Group has been established and a corporate risk management framework has been produced that allows for the identification and management of the Council’s risks. Members and Strategic Directors consider strategic risks, with operational issues devolved to directorate level.  

3.4
Ensuring the Economical, Effective and Efficient Use of Resources


The Council seeks to obtain value for money through effective procurement arrangements. It is the intention of the Council to further enhance these arrangements by making the most of e-procurement across all of the Council’s directorates.


The procurement strategy sets out the aims and objectives for the Council's procurement effort.  This is supported by an action plan, a procurement manual, a procurement officers' group drawn from all directorates and a procurement capacity building programme.


The e-Government agenda is all about making the most of the new technologies to deliver, within the resources available, better quality and more accessible public services. The Council has made excellent progress and has achieved its e-Government target, continuing to develop plans with local partners and communities for electronic service delivery.


The Council identifies efficiencies and monitors their implementation primarily through its budget strategy and monitoring processes.  Also, since the Gershon review report in July 2004, it has aligned these processes with the principles and guidance issued by the Government.  A "Think Efficiency" initiative under the direction of a Cabinet sub-group has been established to provide greater focus and priority to the identification and delivery of further efficiencies.
3.5
The Financial Management of the Council


The system of financial management within the authority is structured through Standing Orders and Financial Regulations which are in accordance with CIPFA’s guidance. A framework of regular management information, administrative procedures (including division of duties), management supervision, and a system of delegation and accountability support these. Such procedures seek to ensure that transactions are authorised and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.


Maintenance of the system of financial control is undertaken by managers at directorate and corporate level, with reports to Lead Members, Scrutiny, Cabinet and Council.

3.6
Performance Management and its Reporting


In accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the Council seeks to achieve continuous improvement by having regard to the efficiency, economy, and effectiveness of service delivery. An annual programme of Best Value reviews is designed to take into account local and national priorities, to contribute to the Council’s Pledges and to develop service improvement. Best Value reviews are open to challenge and reported via the Council’s Scrutiny procedures.


The Council has implemented an electronic Performance Management Framework that enables monitoring of performance against service plans and balanced scorecards. The Council’s priorities and pledges are clearly linked to planned activities and national and local  Performance Indicators. Performance against these are monitored through regular monthly reporting to Strategic Directors, and to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. Performance targets and outcomes are reported to stakeholders in the annual Best Value Performance Plan.

3.7
Internal Audit Function

The Council maintains an Internal Audit Section, which operates to the standards set out in the ‘Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK’.

Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control and where relevant, making recommendations for improvement. The implementation of recommendations is subsequently checked by Internal Audit.

Internal Audit has direct access and reporting lines to all senior management, including the Chief Executive and Chair of the Audit Committee. Internal Audit formally reports on its activity to the Council’s Executive, providing an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.
As part of the audit review cycle Internal Audit undertakes a programme of reviews that cover the main financial systems.

3.8
The Controls Assurance Statement (CAS)

The Controls Assurance Statements (CAS) forms part of the Financial Management Standard in Schools (FMSiS) requirements.  The Schools are required to assess the processes that are in place to ensure effective financial management of the school and its resources.  The Statement is signed by the Headteacher, Chair of the Governing Body and the Chair of the Finance Committee.

The Statement provides the s151 officer reasonable assurance that all the funds managed by a school have been properly controlled and accounted for. 

3.9
Partnerships
The Council currently delivers a wide range of services which often involve working in partnership with others, many of which involve considerable levels of funding. Salford City Council is involved in a number of partnerships with the most significant being Urban Vision and New Prospect Housing Ltd (NPHL). 

It is a requirement of the Statement of Recommended Practice  (SORP) 2006 that, “Where an authority is in a group relationship with other entities and undertakes significant activities through the group, the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control should include its group activities.”
Internal audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control within group activities and where relevant, making recommendations for improvement. The implementation of recommendations is subsequently checked by Internal Audit.  

Work has also been undertaken to ensure that a strong control environment is in place by the partnerships’ external auditors as part of their own financial reporting requirements.

4.   Review of Effectiveness 

Salford City Council has responsibility for formally conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the Council’s internal auditors and the Strategic Directors within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control environment, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control includes:

· The Strategic Director of Customer & Support Services (the Monitoring Officer) has a duty to monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its aims and principles are given full effect and also ensures high standards of ethical governance are maintained.

· The Council operates Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Scrutiny Committee and Members can “call in” any decision that has been made but not yet implemented, to enable them to consider whether the decision is appropriate. An Audit Committee is in place which is recognised as good practice in the CIPFA Finance Advisory Network, the Statement on Internal Control.

· Internal Audit is responsible for monitoring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control. A risk model is used to formulate the annual work programme that is approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Section is subject to regular inspection by the Audit Commission who place reliance on the work carried out by the section.
· Each year, the Corporate Governance and Risk Management Group review the Corporate Risk Management Framework to ensure its continued relevance to the Council.  The Corporate Risk Management Group receive quarterly updates to the risk registers bringing their attention to significant risks.  Risk registers are recorded and reviewed via the Performance Management Framework system.

· For performance management, a Comparator Action Plan monitoring and reporting system is in place. This highlights the direction of travel and likelihood of meeting the performance targets, with any corrective actions identified.
· The Standards Committee, with an independent chair and two independent members, regulate and oversee the national code of conduct and the members’ and officers’ protocol.

· The Head of Finance is the designated Section 151 officer and reports regularly on the discharge of those statutory duties, and is the responsible officer for money laundering.

· The Internal Audit section is subject to regular scrutiny by the Audit Committee who approve the annual plan and the audit work produced.  The work of the Internal Audit section is also subject to quality review by the Directorates for whom the work is performed.


We have been advised on the implications of the result of reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by internal and external advisors, and a plan to address any weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

5.
Significant Internal Control Issues

The Authority has invested heavily in reviewing assurances on the internal control framework. It takes seriously its requirements to demonstrate the effectiveness of its control environment and has reviewed all areas and suggested sources of evidence in accordance with the guidance issued on preparing this statement. Evidence has been gathered across all of the Council’s directorates and where the Council undertakes significant activities through group relationships to ensure that controls are operating effectively across all areas.


Consideration has been given to the following objectives and the Council’s compliance with each:

· Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives

· Identify principal risks to achievement of objectives

· Identify key controls to manage principal risks

· Obtain assurance on the effectiveness of key controls

· Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

In producing the Statement on Internal Control (SIC), the Council has established a SIC Management Group with responsibility for overseeing the production of evidence, evaluating the information supplied, and preparing the actual statement. The Management Group are also responsible for monitoring progress against the agreed action plan when any issues have been identified.

5.1
Significant Control Issues Arising from the 2006/07 Review of Effectiveness of the System of Internal Control

The Management Group and Members of the Council have considered the evidence provided by Strategic Directors with regards to the production of the Statement on Internal Control.  There were no significant issues affecting the Council’s control environment that need to be specifically reported in this Statement.

5.2 Significant Internal Control Issues and Improvement Actions

The control environment within the Council and its group relationships has continued to improve, the majority of issues previously raised have been actively followed up and addressed.

In previous years the Statement on Internal Control identified items which required improvement, and the Council has taken significant action to address those issues, however, the following items have not yet been implemented and are currently being addressed:

· Induction and ongoing awareness training requires developing for legislative changes, corporate governance, risk management and assurance evaluation. The training should be delivered to both elected members and staff, and targeted to specific job roles. 

· Formal partnership arrangements need to be reviewed to ensure that adequate contractual mechanisms are in place for risk sharing.  As a result this will improve and strengthen the internal control framework and ensure service improvement.     

6.
Leader and Chief Executive's Statement of Assurance
We are satisfied that corporate governance arrangements are adequate and are operating effectively.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address any outstanding matters to further improve our corporate governance arrangements.
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Barbara Spicer

Chief Executive Salford City Council 

14 May 2007
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Councillor John Merry

Leader of Salford City Council

14 May 2007

General And Financial Statistics
	2005/06
	
	
	2006/07

	£1,328.54

42.2p

£294.772m

62,218
	
	Council Tax (Band D)

NNDR rate poundage
Total budget requirement

Band D equivalent dwellings for 

Council Tax


	£1,370.81

43.3p

£189.190m

63,722

	12,205

35,146

134,933

18,179

15,896
	
	Population (estimated by the Registrar General from the 2001 census)
Under 5

5-17

18-64

65-74

75 and over
	12,205

35,146

134,933

18,179

15,896

	216,359
	
	Total
	216,359

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	9,723
	
	Area (Hectares)
	9,723

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	45

7

8

-
	
	Political make-up of Council as at 31 March
Labour

Liberal Democrat

Conservative

Other / Independent


	44

8

8

-


Glossary of Financial Terms
Actuarial Gains and Losses

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because (a) events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation or (b) the actuarial assumptions have changed.

Agency Services
Services which are performed by or for another authority or public body, where the principal (the authority responsible for the service) reimburses the agent (the authority doing the work) for the cost of the work carried out.

Aggregate External Finance (AEF)
The financial support provided by Government for revenue expenditure on services that impact on the Council Tax.  AEF comprises revenue support grant, redistributed national non-domestic rates, and specific grants.

Amortisation

The accounting technique of recognising a cost in the revenue account over a period of years rather than when the initial payment is made.  Its purpose is to charge the cost over the accounting periods that gain the benefit of the item paid for.

Annual Efficiency Statement (AES)
An annual statement prepared by local authorities to report the gains that they have made through efficiencies and the strategy for achieving future gains.

Appointed Auditors
External auditors of local authorities appointed by the Audit Commission.  In the City Council's case they are from the Commission's own operations.

Assets
Items of worth which are measurable in terms of money (value).  Current assets are ones that may change in value on a day-to-day basis (e.g. stocks).  Fixed assets are tangible assets that yield benefit to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more than one year.

Associate

An entity other than a subsidiary or joint venture in which the reporting authority has a participating interest and over whose operating and financial policies the reporting authority is able to exercise significant influence.

Best Value Performance Plan
A plan that shows how well the Council is performing compared with its targets for improvement, across the range of services provided.

Budget Requirement
The estimated revenue expenditure on general fund services that need to be financed from the council tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain specific grants and any funding from reserves.  It is referred to by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government when deciding the criteria for capping local authority revenue expenditure.

Business Improvement Districts (BIDs)
A Government initiative whereby additional services or improvements which are of benefit to the community in a particular area can be funded by a levy raised by an addition to the NNDR.  The City Council do not have any BIDs.

Cabinet

The Cabinet comprises the Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader plus the eight Lead Members.  The Council constitution spells out the roles of individual Cabinet members and details of their respective portfolios.

Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset, or expenditure which adds to, and not merely maintains, the value of an existing fixed asset.  Capital expenditure is charged to the revenue account over a number of years via a capital charge.

Capital Financing Charges
The annual charge to the Revenue Account in respect of the minimum revenue provision and interest on money borrowed together with leasing rentals.

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

A measure of an authority's underlying need to borrow to finance its investment.  Calculated by aggregating fixed assets, deferred charges, fixed asset restatement account, capital financing account and government grants deferred from the balance sheet.

Capital Grants

Grants received towards capital expenditure on a particular service or project.

Capital Receipts
Money received from the sale of land or other capital assets, a proportion of which may be used to finance new capital expenditure, subject to the provisions contained within the Local Government Act 2003.

With effect from 1  April 2004 75% of housing dwelling capital receipts and 50% of other housing receipts must be paid to the Secretary of State; the balance is available for financing capital expenditure.

CIPFA

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, the leading professional accountancy body for public services.

Collection Fund
The transactions of the Council as a charging authority in relation to NNDR and council tax.

Community Assets
These are assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity, which have no determinable finite useful life and in addition may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples include parks, historical buildings not used for operational purposes, works of art, museum exhibits and statues.

Council Tax
The main source of local taxation to local authorities.  Council tax is levied on households within its area by the billing authority and the proceeds are paid into its Collection Fund for distribution to precepting authorities and for use by its own general fund.

Council Tax Benefit
Assistance provided by billing authorities to adults on low incomes to help them pay their council tax bill.  The cost to authorities of council tax benefit is largely met by government grant.

Creditors
Amounts owed by the Council for goods and services provided where payment has not been made at the date of the balance sheet.

Current Service Costs

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension scheme's liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current period, ie the ultimate pension benefits "earned" by employees in the current year's employment.

Debt Charges
A term sometimes used to refer to capital financing costs.

Debtors
Sums of money due to the Council but not received at the date of the balance sheet.

Deferred Charges
Items of capital expenditure which may be deferred but which does not result in, or remain matched with assets controlled by the authority.

Defined Benefit Scheme

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme.  Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme.  The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally funded).

Defined Contribution Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions as an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

DEFRA
Government Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.

Depreciation

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life of a fixed asset, whether arising from use, the passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes.

DFES

Government Department for Education and Skills

Direct Revenue Financing
The method of financing capital expenditure directly from revenue.  The Council may determine that certain capital schemes should be financed in this way or alternatively may include a prescribed sum in the revenue budget for this purpose.

Discretionary Benefits
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and which are awarded under the Council’s discretionary powers.

External Audit
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of local authorities to ensure the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper practices and to ensure the authority has made proper arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources.

Fair value

The price at which an asset could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction, less any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset.

Finance Lease
A lease of land, buildings or equipment where the substance of the transaction is that the balance of risks and rewards of holding the asset is borne by the lessee.  It is accounted for in a similar manner to borrowing.

Financial Regulations
A written code of procedures approved by the authority, intended to provide a framework for proper financial management.  Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures.

Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs)

Statements prepared by the Accounting Standards Board to ensure consistency in accountancy matters.  Many FRSs apply to local authorities and any departures must be disclosed in the published accounts.

General Fund

The total services of the Council except for the Housing Revenue Account.  The net cost is met by the Collection Fund, government grants and re-distributed NNDR.

Housing Benefit
An allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or part, their rent.  Benefit is allowed or paid by local authorities but Government refunds part of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to local authorities.  Benefits paid to the authority's own tenants is known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as rent allowance.

Housing Investment Programme (HIP)
Annual submissions by local authorities to Government which outline the strategy for meeting housing needs and details capital spending plans.  HIP submissions are used by the Department for Communities and Local Government as the basis for issuing annual capital guidelines for housing to local authorities. 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Local authorities are required to maintain a separate account - the Housing Revenue Account - which sets out the expenditure and income arising from the provision of housing.  Other services are charged to the General Fund.

HRA Subsidy
A government grant paid to some housing authorities towards the cost of providing, managing and maintaining dwellings and paying housing benefits to tenants.

Income

Amounts due to the Council for goods supplied or services rendered of either a capital or a revenue nature.  This does not necessarily involve a cash payment - income is deemed to have been earned once the goods or services have been supplied even if the payment has not been received (in which case the recipient is a debtor to the Council).

Infrastructure Assets

These are assets which generally cannot be sold, from which benefit can be obtained only by continued use of the asset created.  Examples of such assets are highways, footpaths, bridges, water and drainage facilities.

Joint Venture

An entity in which the reporting authority has an interest on a longer term basis and is jointly controlled by the reporting authority and one or more other entities under a contractual or other binding arrangement.

Liquid Resources
Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the Council without disrupting its activities and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

Loan Charges
A term sometimes used to refer to capital financing charges.

LOBO (“Lender Offer Borrower Option”)

A LOBO is a type of loan instrument.  The borrower borrows a principal sum for the duration of the loan period (typically 20 to 50 years), initially at a fixed interest rate.  Periodically (typically every six months to 3 years), the lender has the ability to alter the interest rate.  Should the lender make this offer, the borrower then has the option to continue with the instrument at the new rate or alternatively to terminate the agreement and pay back the principal sum with no other penalty.

Local Area Agreements
Government initiative to improve co-ordination between Government and local authorities and their partners, working through Local Strategic Partnerships.

Local Authority Business Growth Incentives (LABGI)
Power given under the Local Government Act 2003 to allow local authorities to retain a share of extra revenue raised through National Non Domestic Rates from new business property.

Local Authority Finance Settlement (LAFS)
The product of the annual consultation process between central and local government which sets funding levels for local government in the following year.  LAFS is announced in late November/early December following the Chancellor of the Exchequer's November statement on public expenditure.

Local Public Service Agreements (LPSAs)
Agreements between the government and local authorities to deliver improved outcomes in key areas in return for greater flexibility and rewards for success.

Local Schools Budget (LSB)
This includes all planned expenditure on maintained schools, ie the expenditure managed centrally by the local education authority and that delegated to schools via the Individual Schools Budget (ISB) funding formula.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be charged to an authority’s revenue account each year and set aside as provision for credit liabilities, as required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

National Non Domestic Rate (NNDR) (also known as Business Rates)

A levy on business property, based on a national rate in the pound applied to the ‘rateable value’ of the property.  The Government determines a national rate poundage each year which is applicable to all local authorities.  Local authorities collect the non-domestic rate but the proceeds are pooled and distributed by the Government on the basis of an authority’s population.

Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF)
A government initiative introduced in 2001/02 to assist local communities to deliver better outcomes for their most deprived areas.

Net Current Replacement Cost
The cost of replacing or recreating a particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing use, i.e., the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.

Net Debt

The Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.

Net Realisable Value

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-operational assets) less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.

Office for Standards in Education (Ofsted)
A non-ministerial government department, independent from the DfES.

Operating Lease
A type of lease, usually of computer equipment, office equipment, furniture, etc. where the balance of risks and rewards of holding the asset remains with the lessee.  It is accounted for as a simple rental.

Past Service Costs

Discretionary pension benefits awarded on early retirement.

Pension Fund
An employees' pension fund maintained by an authority, or group or authorities, in order to make pension payments on retirement of participants; it is financed from contributions from the employing authority, the employee and investment income.

Precept

The amount levied by various authorities (e.g. the Greater Manchester Police Authority) which is collected by the Council on their behalf.

Precepting Authorities
Those authorities which are not billing authorities, ie do not collect the council tax and non-domestic rate.  County Councils, police authorities and joint authorities are 'major precepting authorities' and parish, community and town Councils are 'local precepting authorities'.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
A Government initiative which aims to increase the level of funding available for public services by attracting private sources of finance.  The PFI is supported by a number of incentives to encourage authorities' participation and is normally delivered via a Public Private Partnership (PPP).

Projected Unit Method

The method used by the actuary to value the Council’s pension liability at a particular date.  The method makes assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc and values the liability for:

· the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where appropriate for future increases and

· the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.

Provisions
These are sums set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred but where the amount and/or the timing of such costs is uncertain.

Prudential Limits
The means by which the authority controls its level of borrowing.  The limits set must be prudent, affordable and sustainable in the long term.

Public Private Partnership (PPP)
Generic term for the relationships formed between the private sector and public bodies often with the aim of introducing private sector resources and/or expertise in order to help provide and deliver public sector assets and services.

Public Service Agreement (PSA)
Statements of the aims, objectives and targets to be achieved by public bodies with the funding provided through the Comprehensive Spending Review.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB)
An independent statutory body which can make loans to local authorities and other prescribed bodies.  Monies are provided by Acts of Parliament and drawn from the national loans fund.

Related Parties
For the purposes of the Council's accounts related parties are the Government, other local authorities, precepting and levying bodies, subsidiary and associated companies, elected members, all senior officers from assistant director and above and the Pension Fund.  For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to be related parties:-

(i)
Members of the close family, or the same household;   and

(ii)
Partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member of their close family or the same household, has a controlling interest.

Reserves
These are sums set aside to meet possible future costs where there is no certainty about whether or not the costs will actually be incurred.

Resource Accounting

The new financial framework for local authority housing, which was introduced from 1 April 2001, aims to encourage a more efficient use of housing assets utilising business planning, stock information (including stock valuation) and local housing needs assessment. The main accounting changes are the incorporation of an element to reflect the cost of capital together with an allowance for depreciation.   

Revenue Expenditure
Expenditure incurred on the day to day running of the Council; the costs principally include employee expenses, capital financing charges and general running costs.

Revenue Expenditure Capping
A system of controlling  the spending of local authorities whereby the Government limits a local authority's budget requirement and hence the council tax it sets either because it is deemed excessive or is deemed to show an excessive increase over the previous year.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
A grant paid by the Government to every local authority to help to finance its expenditure generally and not specific services.  The grant helps to bridge the gap between council tax and NNDR income on one hand and the total assessment of the Council's need to spend on the other (as measured by the Standard Spending Assessment).  The payment of RSG attempts to ensure that differences in spending needs and resources between authorities are equalised, in order to permit each authority to support a standard level of spending.

Section 137 Expenditure
Under section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 local authorities are allowed to spend a limited amount to do things they are not otherwise empowered to do, but which they consider to be in the interests of their area or its inhabitants, and which will produce a benefit commensurate with the expenditure involved.

Simple Investment

In group accounts, the reporting authority's interest does not qualify the entity entry as a subsidiary, associate or a joint venture because the reporting authority's has limited influence or its interest is not long-term.

Single Regeneration Budget (SRB)
Government initiative introduced in 1994 to provide resources to support regeneration initiatives in England carried out by local regeneration partnerships.

Specific Grants
Government grants to local authorities in support of particular services or schemes.

Spending Review
The Government's three-year forecast of planned expenditure, including overall provision for local authorities.

Standing Orders
The set of rules adopted by the authority which establish the procedures by which it should conduct its business.  In particular, there must be standing orders relating to tendering and contract procedures.

Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP)
Statements prepared by the Accounting Standards Board to provide further guidance (beyond that in other standards like SSAPs & FRSs) to particular sectors.  The SORP relevant to the Council is the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  The SORP received statutory backing in the Local Government Act 2003 and departures must be disclosed in the published accounts.

Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAPs)
Statements prepared by the Accounting Standards Board to ensure consistency in accountancy matters.  More recently issued standards have been redesignated FRSs.  Many SSAPs apply to local authorities and any departures must be disclosed in the published accounts.

Subsidiary

An entity over which the reporting authority is able to exercise control over operating and financial policies and is able to gain benefits from the entity or is exposed to the risk of potential losses arising from this control.

Supported Capital Expenditure
Government Support for capital investment can be described as Supported Capital Expenditure (Revenue), known as SCR(R), or Supported Capital Expenditure (Capital Grant), known as SCE(C).  Under the Prudential Capital Finance System local authorities are free to make their own borrowing decisions subject to an overall national limit; Government support for borrowing through the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Housing Revenue Account Subsidy (HRAS) is given on the basis of a named amount of capital expenditure which the borrowing will support.

Total Standard Spending (TSS)
The total amount which the government determines local authorities should spend to be consistent with national economic guidelines.  It is used for calculating the total amount of Government support to local authorities.

Treasury Management
The process by which the authority controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending activities.

Treasury Management Policy Statement
A statement which sets out the parameters which the local authority has approved for the management of treasury activities during the year.

Trust Funds

Funds administered by the Council on behalf of charitable organisations and/or specific organisations.

UK GAAP

United Kingdom generally – accepted account practice.

Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing

Borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Government.  The borrowing costs are to be met from current revenue budgets.

Virement
The transfer of resources to a budget head, matched by a corresponding reduction on some other budget head.  Virement must be properly authorised by the appropriate committee or officers under delegated power












� EMBED MSPhotoEd.3  ���














PAGE  

_1244364424.bin

_1244364480.bin

_1245656685.bin

_1244364632.bin

_1244364450.bin

_1244354861.xls
Chart4

		Employees

		Agency (incl DSO charges)

		Benefits/Rent Allowances

		Supplies & Services

		Premises

		Capital Financing

		Transport



%

Gross revenue expenditure by type

31.90

26.57

14.25

12.23

8.36

6.32

0.37



Chart

		Summary of gross revenue expenditure 2006/07

																								Chart Data

																								Expenditure by Service

																										%		£m

																								Education		27.76		187.60

																								Housing		21.35		144.30

																								Social Services		20.97		141.70

																								Cultural, Environmental & Planning		13.02		88.00

																								Capital Financing		6.35		42.90

																								Other Services		5.96		40.30

																								Highways, Roads & transport		4.59		31.00

																										100.00		675.80

																								Expenditure by type		%		£m

																								Employees		31.90		216.7

																								Agency (incl DSO charges)		26.57		180.5

																								Benefits/Rent Allowances		14.25		96.8

																								Supplies & Services		12.23		83.1

																								Premises		8.36		56.8

																								Capital Financing		6.32		42.9

																								Transport		0.37		2.5

																										100		679.3

																								Funding of Gross revenue budget		%		£m

																								Other Government Grants		27.85		189.10

																								Dedicated Schools Grant		17.96		122.00

																								NNDR / RSG		16.46		111.80

																								Council Tax		11.38		77.30

																								Rents		10.88		73.90

																								Other operating receipts		9.72		66.00

																								Fees and charges		5.74		39.00

																										100.00		679.10





Chart

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Gross revenue expenditure by type



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

How the gross revenue expenditure was funded



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Service analysis showing where the money was spent




_1244354880.xls
Chart5

		Other Government Grants

		Dedicated Schools Grant

		NNDR / RSG

		Council Tax

		Rents

		Other operating receipts

		Fees and charges



%

How the gross revenue expenditure was funded

27.85

17.96

16.46

11.38

10.88

9.72

5.74



Chart

		Summary of gross revenue expenditure 2006/07

																								Chart Data

																								Expenditure by Service

																										%		£m

																								Education		27.76		187.60

																								Housing		21.35		144.30

																								Social Services		20.97		141.70

																								Cultural, Environmental & Planning		13.02		88.00

																								Capital Financing		6.35		42.90

																								Other Services		5.96		40.30

																								Highways, Roads & transport		4.59		31.00

																										100.00		675.80

																								Expenditure by type		%		£m

																								Employees		31.90		216.7

																								Agency (incl DSO charges)		26.57		180.5

																								Benefits/Rent Allowances		14.25		96.8

																								Supplies & Services		12.23		83.1

																								Premises		8.36		56.8

																								Capital Financing		6.32		42.9

																								Transport		0.37		2.5

																										100		679.3

																								Funding of Gross revenue budget		%		£m

																								Other Government Grants		27.85		189.10

																								Dedicated Schools Grant		17.96		122.00

																								NNDR / RSG		16.46		111.80

																								Council Tax		11.38		77.30

																								Rents		10.88		73.90

																								Other operating receipts		9.72		66.00

																								Fees and charges		5.74		39.00

																										100.00		679.10





Chart

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Gross revenue expenditure by type



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

How the gross revenue expenditure was funded



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Service analysis showing where the money was spent




_1244296964.bin

_1244354831.xls
Chart3

		Education

		Housing

		Social Services

		Cultural, Environmental & Planning

		Capital Financing

		Other Services

		Highways, Roads & transport



%

Service analysis showing where the money was spent

27.76

21.35

20.97

13.02

6.35

5.96

4.59



Chart

		Summary of gross revenue expenditure 2006/07

																								Chart Data

																								Expenditure by Service

																										%		£m

																								Education		27.76		187.60

																								Housing		21.35		144.30

																								Social Services		20.97		141.70

																								Cultural, Environmental & Planning		13.02		88.00

																								Capital Financing		6.35		42.90

																								Other Services		5.96		40.30

																								Highways, Roads & transport		4.59		31.00

																										100.00		675.80

																								Expenditure by type		%		£m

																								Employees		31.90		216.7

																								Agency (incl DSO charges)		26.57		180.5

																								Benefits/Rent Allowances		14.25		96.8

																								Supplies & Services		12.23		83.1

																								Premises		8.36		56.8

																								Capital Financing		6.32		42.9

																								Transport		0.37		2.5

																										100		679.3

																								Funding of Gross revenue budget		%		£m

																								Other Government Grants		27.85		189.10

																								Dedicated Schools Grant		17.96		122.00

																								NNDR / RSG		16.46		111.80

																								Council Tax		11.38		77.30

																								Rents		10.88		73.90

																								Other operating receipts		9.72		66.00

																								Fees and charges		5.74		39.00

																										100.00		679.10





Chart

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Gross revenue expenditure by type



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

How the gross revenue expenditure was funded



		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00

		0.00



%

Service analysis showing where the money was spent




_1244296854.bin

